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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of McDonough County, Illinois (County), as of and for 
the year ended November 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of McDonough County, Illinois as ofNovember 30, 2012, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
May 31, 2013 on our consideration of McDonough County, Illinois' internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

1 



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
required supplementary information listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

McDonough County, Illinois has not presented the management's discussion and analysis that 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States has determined is necessary to 
supplement, although not required to be a part of, the basic financial statements. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise McDonough County, Illinois' basic financial statements as a whole. The 
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as whole. 

The accompanying financial information listed as "Supplemental Information" in the table of 
contents has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and therefore, we express no opinion on that information. 

Springfield, Illinois 
May 31, 2013 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

November 30, 2012 

Prim!!!! Government 
Governmental Business-Type Government 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,507,462 $ 834,501 $10,341,963 
Restricted cash 73,857 25,886 99,743 
Investments 322,989 950,000 1,272,989 
Receivables, net: 

State of Illinois 789,595 1,257,786 2,047,381 
Property Taxes 4,999,179 369,672 5,368,851 
Accrued interest 9,376 9,376 
Other 176,268 49,896 226,164 

Due from fiduciary funds 149,068 149,068 
Due from (to) other funds 8,476 (8,476) 
Due from component unit 17,138 17,138 
Inventories 9,735 51,561 61,296 
Prepaid expense 261,389 2,919 264,308 
Capital assets not being depreciated I 78,556 61,427 239,983 
Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation 5,916,248 1,684,667 7,600,915 

TOTAL ASSETS 22,409,960 5,289,215 27,699,175 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 448,844 172,274 621,118 
Due to primary government 
Due to fiduciary funds 9,007 9,007 
Accrued expense 133,923 133,923 
Due to others 43,998 43,998 
Deferred revenue 5,013,863 369,672 5,383,535 
Resident deposits 10,962 10,962 
Long-term obligations, due within one year: 

Notes payable 25,527 25,527 
Leases payable 18,818 2,998 21,816 
Compensated absences - current 210,733 152,207 362,940 

Long-term obligations, due in more than one year 
Notes payable 21,453 21,453 
Leases payable 19,758 1,500 21,258 
Compensated absences - long-term 90,595 90,595 
Net OPEB obligation 110,093 69,768 179,861 
Net pension obligation 1,912 1,912 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,014,601 913,304 6,927,905 

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets, 
net of related debt 6,009,248 1,741,596 7,750,844 

Restricted for 
Highways and streets 1,643,564 1,643,564 
Health and welfare 1,314,797 1,314,797 
Public safety 736,223 736,223 
Economic development 92,218 92,218 
Retirement 926,246 926,246 
Specific purpose 1,544,667 14,924 1,559,591 
Debt service 90,681 90,681 

Unrestricted 4,037,715 2,619,391 6,657,106 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 16,395,359 $4,375,911 $20,771,270 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
3 

EXHIBIT 1 

Component 
Unit-
ETSB 

$ 207,911 

50,000 

74,187 

9,919 

342,017 

2,376 
17,138 

19,514 

9,919 

312,584 

$ 322,503 



EXIIIUIT 2 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended November JO, 2012 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Chan~es in Net Assets 

fees, fines, Operating Capital Prima!! Government Component 
and Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Unit-

ACTIVITIES Exeenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total ETSB 

GOVERNMENTAL 
General government $ 2,297,026 $ 684,875 $ 220,902 $ 8,038 $ (1,383,211) $ $ (1,383,21 I) $ 
Public safety 2,947,506 1,312,752 135,259 3,297 (1,496,198) (1,496,198) 
Corrections 1,079,637 43,442 (I ,036,195) (1,036,195) 
Judiciary and court related 2,515,424 772,305 176,328 {1,566,791) ( 1,566, 791) 
Transportation 2,127,551 442,906 610,712 (1,073,933) (I ,073,933) 
Public health and welfare 3,962,073 1,712,130 611,418 (1,638,525) (I ,638,525) 
Interest and fiscal charges 2,867 ~2.867~ ~2.867) 

Total governmental activities 14,932,084 4,968,410 1,754,619 I 1,335 ~8.197. 720) {8. 197,720) 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
The Elms Nursing Home 5,185,912 4,711,686 103,620 p70,606} {370,606) 

..j::>. 

TOTAL McDONOUGH COUNTY $ 20,117,996 $ 9,680,096 $ 1,858,239 $ 11,335 (8,197,720) (370,606) {8,568,326) 

COMPONENT UNIT 
ETSB $ 384,674 $ 379,159 $ $ (5,515) 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 4,823,594 358,493 5,182,087 
Local usc tax 96,776 96,776 
General sales tax 1,953,444 1,953,444 
Income and replacement taxes 752,392 752,392 

Investment income 20,179 16,189 36,368 1,495 
Miscellaneous 783,733 783,733 20,594 

Total general revenues 8,430,118 374,682 8,804,800 22,089 

Change in net assets 232,398 4,076 236,474 16,574 

Net assets - beginning of year 15,926,174 4,496,136 20,422,310 305,929 

Prior period adjusunent 236,787 ~124,301) 112,486 

Net assets - beginning of year, restated 16,162,961 4,371,835 20.534,796 305,929 

Net assets- end or year $ 16,395,359 $ 4,375,911 $20,771,270 $ 322,503 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements. 



Intentionally left blank. 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
November 30,2012 

Illinois 
Municipal Public Safety Social 

General Retirement Sales Tax Security 
Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 975,422 $ 930,100 $ 417,346 $ 787,185 
Restricted cash 
Investments 
Receivables, net: 

State of Illinois 360,882 297,276 
Property taxes 990,900 1,035,716 692,535 
Other 87,475 

Due from other funds 54,289 2,692 2,577 
Inventories 9,735 
Due from component unit 
Advances to other funds 90,681 
Prepaid items 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,478,703 $ 1,968,508 $ 805,303 $ 1,482,297 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 63,779 $ 168,853 $ 36,975 $ 
Due to others 309 
Due to other funds 12,416 625,000 
Deferred revenue 990,900 1,035,716 692,535 
Advances from other funds 90,681 

Total liabilities 1,158,085 1,829,569 36,975 692,535 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 

Nonspendable • prepaids 
Nonspendable • inventories 9,735 

Restricted for debt service 90,681 
Restricted for highways and streets 
Restricted for public safety 13,345 677,647 
Restricted for economic development 
Restricted for health and welfare 
Restricted for retirement 138,939 787,307 
Restricted for specific purpose 
Unrestricted: 

Committed for highways and streets 
Assigned for highways and streets 
Assigned for public safety 
Assigned for economic development 
Assigned for health and welfare 
Assigned for retirement 2,455 
Assigned for specific purpose 
Unassigned 1,297,538 

Total fund balances 1,320,618 138,939 768,328 789,762 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 2,478,703 $ 1,968,508 $ 805,303 $ 1,482,297 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements. 
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EXHIBIT 3 

County Non major Total 
Health Governmental Governmental 
Fund Funds Funds 

$ 517,334 $ 4,359,575 $ 7,986,962 
73,857 73,857 

4,300 318,689 322.989 

89,153 42,284 789,595 
310,856 1,653,037 4,683,044 

63,423 25,370 176,268 
1,682 128,612 189,852 

9,735 
17,138 17,138 

90,681 
179,662 179,662 

$ 1,060,605 $ 6,724,367 $ 14,519,783 

$ 13,417 $ 71,618 $ 354,642 
43,689 43,998 

12,694 25,503 675,613 
325,540 1,653,037 4,697,728 

90,681 

351,651 1,793,847 5,862,662 

179,662 179,662 
9,735 

90,681 
1,643,564 1,643,564 

45,231 736,223 
92,218 92,218 

673,836 640,961 1,314,797 
926,246 

1,544,667 1,544,667 

343,322 343,322 
160,271 160,271 

106 106 
28 28 

35,118 11,726 46,844 
2,455 

268,764 268,764 
1,297,538 

708,954 4,930,520 8,657, I 21 

$ 1,060,605 $ 6,724,367 $ 14,519,783 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 

TO THE NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
November 30, 2012 

Total fund balance for government funds (Exhibit 3) 

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
net assets is different because: 

Capital assets used in government activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of: 

Land 
Buildings, net 
Building improvements, net 
Infrastructure, net 
Vehicles, net 
Maintenance equipment, net 
Computer equipment, net 
Software, net 
Office equipment, net 

Internal service funds (see Exhibit 5) are used by the County to charge 
the cost ofliability, unemployment, worker's compensation, and 
medical insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the 
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the 
statement of net assets. Internal service fund net assets are: 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities 
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not 
reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued 
in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when 
due. All liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the 
statement of net assets. The long-term liabilities consist of: 

Notes payable 
Leases payable 
Compensated absences 
Net OPEB obligation 
Net pension obligation 

Total long-term liabilities 

TOTAL NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
(EXHIBIT 1) 

$ 178,556 
992,856 

1,285,792 
2,903,993 

287,303 
346,825 

49,840 
20,978 
28,661 

$ (46,980) 
(38,576) 

(301,328) 
(11 0,093) 

(1,912) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EXHIBIT 3.1 

$ 8,657,121 

6,094,804 

2,142,323 

(498,889) 

$ 16,395,359 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year ended November 30, 2012 

Illinois 
Municipal Public Safety 

General Retirement Sales Tax 
Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 958,858 $ 969,143 $ 
State of Illinois: 

Local use tax 96,776 
Sales tax 795,226 1,158,218 
Income tax 566,765 
Motor fuel tax al1otments 
Personal property replacement taxes 173,766 11,861 
State grants and expenditure 

reimbursements 442,999 
Federal revenue 53,074 
Fees for services and materials 1,260,448 
Investment income 2,650 315 2,397 
Other 191,917 1,853 25,744 

Total revenues 4,542,479 983,172 1,186,359 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 1,411,058 107,001 
Public safety 1,480,652 180,917 520,321 
Corrections 348,776 11,051 363,483 
Judiciary and court related 1,532,608 213,973 
Public health 401,540 
Public welfare 
Transportation 63,354 

Capital outlay 12,342 77,430 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 4,785,436 977,836 961,234 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over 
expenditures (242,957) 5,336 225,125 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 371,379 100,000 
Transfers out (77,525l !J55,000} 

Total other financing sources (uses) 293,854 100,000 p55,000} 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 50,897 105,336 ~129,875} 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,226,060 33,603 898,203 

Prior period adjustment 43,661 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
OF YEAR- RESTATED 1,269,721 33,603 898,203 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 1,320,618 $ 138,939 $ 768,328 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Social 
Security 

Fund 

$ 671,596 

619 
1,836 

674,051 

84,453 
143,907 

9,962 
25,299 

290,578 

57,111 

611,310 

62,741 

62,741 

727,021 

727,021 

$ 789,762 



County 
Health 
Fund 

$ 301,457 $ 

141,100 
470,318 
179,283 

254 
34.864 

1,127,276 

1,019,676 

38,736 

26,877 
1,923 

1,087,212 

40,064 

20,205 

20,205 

60,269 

631,370 

17,315 

648,685 

$ 708,954 

Non major Total 
Governmental Go,•ernmental 

$ 

Funds Funds 

1,615,964 $ 4,517,018 

96,776 
1,953,444 

566,765 
363,279 363,279 

185,627 

271,884 855,983 
523,392 

770,721 2,210,452 
11,926 18,161 

277,414 533,628 
3,311,188 11,824,525 

276,054 1,878,566 
20,637 2,346,434 

268,823 1,002,095 
253,814 2,025,694 
597,975 2,309,769 
218,714 218,714 

1,567,022 1,687,487 
272,164 400,672 

26,877 
1,923 

3,475,203 11,898,231 

(164,015) (73,706) 

535,866 1,027,450 
(589,381) ~1.021.906) 

~53,515) 5,544 

(217,530) (68,162) 

4,972,239 8,488,496 

175,811 236,787 

5,148,050 8,725,283 

4,930,520 $ 8,657,121 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year ended November 30, 2012 

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds (Exhibit 4} 

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The following is the amount 
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current year: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation 

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and 
thus contribute to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net assets, 
however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the 
statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in 
the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets. 

Repayments: 
Notes payable 
Leases payable 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, 
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid 
with expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, 
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities 
are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. 

Compensated absences 
Net OPEB obligation 
Net pension obligation 

Internal services funds (See Exhibit 6} are used by the County to charge the costs 
of certain activities, such as insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue 
(expense) of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
(EXHIBIT 2) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EXHIBIT 4.1 

$ (68.162} 

286,030 
(438,465) 

26,877 
17,924 

(119) 
(32,655) 

(189) 

441,157 

$ 232,398 



EXHIBIT 5 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
November 30, 2012 

Business-type Governmental 
Activities Activities 
Enterprise Internal 

Fund- Service 
The Elms Funds 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 834,501 $ 1.520,500 
Restricted cash 25,886 
Investments 950,000 
Receivables: 

State of Illinois 1,257,786 
Property taxes 369,672 316,135 
Accrued interest 9,376 
Other 49,896 

Due from other funds 689 646,859 
Inventories 51,561 
Prepaid expenses 2,919 81,727 

Total current assets 3,552,286 2,565,221 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 1,746,094 

Total assets 5,298,380 2,565,221 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 172,274 94,202 
Accrued expense 133,923 
Due to other funds 9,165 12,561 
Deferred revenue 369,672 316,135 
Resident deposits 10,962 
Leases payable 2,998 
Compensated absences payable- current 152,207 

Total current liabilities 851,201 422,898 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Leases payable- noncurrent 1,500 
Compensated absences payable 
Net OPEB obligation 69,768 

Total noncurrent liabilities 71,268 

Total liabilities 922,469 422,898 

NET ASSETS 

Investment in capital assets 1,741,596 
Restricted for: 

Other purposes 14,924 
Unrestricted 2,619,391 2,142,323 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 4,375,911 $ 2,142,323 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSE, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Other revenue 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Insurance premiums 
Medical claims and administration fees 
Public health: 

Dietary 
Housekeeping 
Laundry 
Maintenance 
Nursing 
Therapy 
Activities 
Social services 
Administrative 
Payroll related 
Depreciation 
Plant operations 
Contractual 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

For the Year Ended November 30,2012 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Property taxes 
Investment income 
Grants 
Interest expense 
Other 

Total nonoperating revenues 

Income (loss) before transfers and contributions 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers out 

Total transfers 

CONTRIBUTION REVENUE- Farm and 
Macomb Public Building Commission 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

TOTAL NET ASSETS- BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Prior Period Adjustment 

TOTAL NET ASSETS- BEGINNING OF YEAR, RESTATED 

TOTAL NET ASSETS- END OF \'EAR 

Business-tjpe 
Activities 

Enterprise 
Fund­

The Elms 

$ 4,711,686 
88,307 

$ 

4,799,993 

553,855 
195,534 
135,433 
116,022 

2,094,748 
232,269 
112,986 
52,730 

342,715 
964,581 
177,087 
155,466 
52,486 

5,185,912 

(385,919) 

358,493 
16,189 

374,682 

(11,237) 

15,313 

4,076 

4,496,136 

(124,301) 

4,371,835 

4,375,91 I 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EXHIBIT 6 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 

$ 

Internal 
Sen·ice 
Funds 

2,757,958 

2,757,958 

540,150 
2,352,162 

2,892,312 

(134,354) 

306,576 
2,018 

23,300 
(944) 

250,105 

581,055 

446,701 

(5,544) 

{5,544) 

441,157 

1,701,166 

1,701,166 

2,142,323 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended November 30, 2012 

Business-type 
Activities 

Enterprise 
Fund-

The Elms 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers $ 4,930,994 
Payments to suppliers (2,314,691) 
Payments to employees (2,895,452) 
Internal activity-payments from (to) other funds 
Other receipts 88,307 

Net cash from operating activities {190,842} 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPIT AL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Property taxes 358,493 
Other nonoperating revenue 
Grants received 
lnterfund borrowing (lending) 8,476 
Transfers in (out) 

Net cash from noncapital financing activities 366.969 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTI\1TIES 
Repayment of loan proceeds (2,998) 
Interest paid on loan 
Purchases of property and equipment (6,126) 

Net cash from capital financing activities (9,124} 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on investments 16,189 
Proceeds from maturity of investments 950,000 
Purchase of investments ~950,000} 

Net cash from investing activities 16,189 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 183,192 

CASH Al\1> CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNlNG OF YEAR 677,195 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 860,387 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF \'EAR 
Cash and cash equivalents s 834,501 
Restricted cash 25,886 

Total s 860,387 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating loss $ (385,919) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

from operating activities: 
Depreciation 177,087 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 219,308 
Inventories (1,216) 
Prepaid expenses (150) 
Accounts payable (231,258) 
Accrued liabilities 16,417 
Compensated absences payable (947) 
Net OPES obligation 15,836 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ ~190,842) 

Non-cash capital and related financing activities: 
Donated capital assets $ 15,313 

Total non-cash capital and related financing activities $ 15,313 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EXHIBIT 7 

Governmental 
Activities 
Internal 
Service 
Funds 

s 
(2,930,246) 

2,757,958 

(172,288) 

306,576 
250,105 

23,300 
{321,859) 

(5.544) 
252,578 

(25,862) 
{944) 

(26,806) 

2,018 

2,018 

55,502 

1,464,998 

$ 1,520,500 

s 1,520,500 

s 1,520,500 

s (134,354) 

(3,652) 
{34,282) 

$ (172,288~ 

s 
s 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables: 

State of Illinois 
Other 
Due from county funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Due to county funds 
Due to other taxing units 
Due to others 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

November 30, 2012 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT 8 

Agency 
Funds 

1,789,632 
270,000 

547,963 
11,458 
9,007 

2,628,060 

129,604 
149,068 

1,425,768 
923,620 

2,628,060 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

November 30, 2012 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

McDonough County is one of 1 02 counties organized in the State of Illinois. As a local 
governmental unit, the County is tax-exempt. The County provides a broad range of 
services to citizens, including but not limited to general government, public safety and 
corrections, transportation, and public health and welfare. Revenues are substantially 
generated as a result of taxes assessed and allocated to McDonough County (examples 
would be property taxes, sales taxes, income taxes and motor fuel taxes) and charges for 
services performed for constituents of the County. McDonough County revenues are 
therefore primarily dependent on the economy within its territorial boundaries. Industry 
within the County is primarily agriculture, manufacturing, and retail. Additionally, 
there are large nonprofit employers, including a hospital, state university, and other 
local governments within the County. 

The accounting policies and the presentation of the basic financial statements of 
McDonough County (County) have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to 
governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The more significant of the County's accounting policies are described 
below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

These financial statements include all organizations, activities, functions, funds, 
and component units for which the County is financially accountable. Financial 
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the 
component unit's board and either (1) the County's ability to impose its will over 
the component unit or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a 
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County. The following 
component units have been included in the financial statements of the County. 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT: 

The McDonough County Board Chairman, with the advice and consent of the 
McDonough County Board, appoints board members (not to exceed 11 members) to 
the ETSB. The members of the ETSB are then responsible for planning the 911 
emergency system, receiving monies imposed under an established surcharge, and 
authorizing disbursements. The geographic area served by the ETSB is the 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -Continued 

A. Reporting Entity - Continued 

same as McDonough County. The treasurer of McDonough County maintains the 
funds and invests or disburses them at the direction of the ETSB. McDonough 
County has the responsibility for approving the rate of the surcharge which funds the 
activities of the ETSB and, therefore, has the ability to impose its will on the ETSB. 
The ETSB does not issue any separate component unit reports. 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the 
primary government and its component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are intended to 
finance. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. In determining when to 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation­
Continued 

recognize intergovernmental revenue (grants, motor fuel tax allotments and shared 
revenue), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as 
guidance. There are, however, essentially two bases for this revenue recognition. In 
one, monies are virtually unrestricted as to the purpose of the expenditure and are 
nearly irrevocable; therefore, these amounts are recognized as revenue at the time of 
their receipt or earlier if they meet the criteria of availability. In the other, monies 
must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid 
to the County; therefore, revenue is recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The County considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period, 
except for sales taxes collected within 90 days. Also, income taxes have a 90 day 
availability period in the current year due to delays in distributions from the State of 
Illinois. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under 
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes owed from the state at year end, franchise taxes, licenses, 
charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. Personal property replacement taxes are considered to be 
measurable when they have been collected and allocated by the state and are 
recognized as revenue at that time. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the County. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund- The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. 
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund- This fund is used to account for tax 
monies and reimbursements for the funding of the County's IMRF retirement 
system. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation­
Continued 

Public Safety Sales Tax Fund- This fund is used to account for the state sales 
tax received to fund various public safety purposes. 

Social Security Fund - This fund is used to account for the County's obligation 
to make contributions related to employees' wages for FICA and Medicare 
payroll taxes. 

County Health Fund - This fund is used to account for the resources of the 
County Health Department. 

The County reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Elms - This fund is used to account for the activities of the County's 
nursing home. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources requiring separate accounting because of legal or 
regulatory provisions or administrative action. 

Capital Projects Funds- These funds are used to account for the resources used 
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities. 

Internal Service Funds- These funds account for insurance costs provided to 
other departments or agencies of the government on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. 

Permanent Funds - These funds account for monies held in trust that can be 
used for governmental purposes. 

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity 
or as an agent for individuals, other governments, or other funds. These include the 
following fund type: Agency Funds. Agency Funds account for monies held on 
behalf of others. 

18 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -Continued 

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation­
Continued 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of The Elms enterprise fund and 
of the County's internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County has defined cash equivalents 
to include savings accounts, demand deposit accounts, and certificates of deposit with 
an original maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

Investments, consisting primarily of certificates of deposit with an original maturity of 
greater than three months, are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Interest 
earned on certain Agency Fund investments is transferred to and recorded as income in 
the General Fund. 

E. Accounts Receivable 

All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of allowance for doubtful accounts. 

F. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. 
Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather 
than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -Continued 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, right of ways, bridges), are reported in the applicable governmental or business­
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets 
used in governmental fund operations (general capital assets) are not capitalized in the 
funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction 
are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported 
in the statement of net assets. Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized 
within the fund. 

The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of $10,000 
or more and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 
or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component 
unit, is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Assets 

Buildings 
Building improvements 
Maintenance equipment 
Software 
Vehicles 
Office equipment 
Computer equipment 
Infrastructure 

20 

Years 

40 
25 
10 
5 
5 
7 
5 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

H. Property Taxes 

McDonough County Supervisor of Assessments prepares the property tax assessment 
rolls with the property tax liens as of January 1 of each year. Levies are set by 
individual local governmental entities by the last Tuesday of December of each year. 

The collection date for property tax receipts is thirty days after the property tax bills 
are mailed to property owners for the first installment, generally June 1 of each year. 
The second installment is generally due September 1 of each year. 

Property taxes collected are distributed to each taxing district approximately thirty 
days after receipt. Any unpaid property tax levies are sold at a tax sale the last week 
of October and final distribution is made by the end of November of each year. 

I. Compensated Absences 

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused 
vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave 
since the government does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees 
separate from service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred 
in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these 
amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as 
a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

McDonough County has the following policies concerning compensated absences for 
all full-time employees. 

Personal Leave 

Employees are allowed non-cumulative personal leave days as follows: 

County and Sheriffs Department 
Highway Department 

Days Per Year 
3 

Health Department 

*Unused personal days are transferred at the end of the calendar year to the 
employee's vacation leave account. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -Continued 

I. Compensated Absences- Continued 

Sick Leave 

Employees accrue one day of sick leave per month of service. For employees there is 
no provision for payment upon termination. Unused accumulated sick days may be 
carried over and may be applied for IMRF pension service credit in accordance with 
IMRF guidelines as indicated by the following schedule: 

County offices 
Sheriffs Department 
Highway Department 
Health Department 

Vacation Leave 

Maximum Days 
Accumulated (Carryover) 

40 
180 
40 
240 

Maximum 
Days for IMRF 

240 
365 
240 
240 

Full-time employees of the County earn vacation benefits according to the following 
schedule: 

Years of Service 
1 - 5 
6- 15 
16 and over 

Working Days Per Year 
10 
15 
20 

Full-time employees at the Sheriffs Department and the County Highway Department 
earn vacation benefits according to the following schedule: 

Years of Service 
1-4 
5- 14 
15 and over 

22 

Working Days Per Year 
10 
15 
20 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

I. Compensated Absences- Continued 

Full and part-time Health Department employees earn vacation benefits according to 
the following schedule: 

Years of Service 
I - 3 
4- 10 
1I and over 

Working Days Per Year 
10 
15 
20 

Employees, excluding Health Department employees, can accumulate and carryover 
vacation benefits equivalent to twice the amount earned in one service year. Health 
Department employees can accumulate up to 30 days of vacation benefits in one 
calendar year. Unused vacation in excess of accumulation and carryover limits as of 
December 31 each year is lost. 

J. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary funds statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 
interest method. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize the face amount of 
debt issued as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as 
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

K. Interfund Transactions 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other 
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" 
(i.e. the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

K. Interfund Transactions - Continued 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a 
fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are 
not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

L. Fund Balance/Net Assets 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance 
for amounts that are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance reported for amounts constrained by 
legal restrictions from outside parties for use for a specific purpose, or externally 
imposed by outside entities. None of the restricted fund balance result from enabling 
legislation adopted by the County. Committed fund balance is constrained by formal 
actions of the County's Board, which is considered the County's highest level of 
decision making authority. Formal actions include resolutions and ordinances 
approved by the Board. Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained by the 
County's intent to use them for a specific purpose, but that are neither restricted nor 
committed. Any residual fund balance is reported as unassigned. 

The County's flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest level 
of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available for 
spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of 
unrestricted funds are available for spending the County considers committed funds to 
be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds. 

The County has not established fund balance reserve policies for their governmental 
funds. 

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net assets are legally restricted 
by outside parties for a specific purpose. None of the County's net assets are restricted 
as a result of enabling legislation adopted by the County. Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt, represents the County's investment in the book value of capital 
assets, less any outstanding debt that was issued to construct or acquire the capital 
asset. 

M. Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of The Elms' enterprise fund are classified as restricted assets on the 
statement of net assets because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and are 
contributions made on behalf of former patients for specific purposes. The funds can 
only be spent according to the donors' wishes. Certain proceeds of the County Health 
Fund are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because the 
balance is required to be maintained until the loan has been repaid. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

N. Patient Service Revenue 

Patient service revenue is reported at the net realizable amounts from residents; third­
party payors, and others for service rendered, net of provider tax. 

Revenue under third-party payor agreements is subject to audit and retroactive 
adjustment. Provisions for third-party payor settlements are provided in the period the 
related services are rendered. Differences between the amounts accrued and interim 
and final settlements are reported in operations in the year of settlement. 

0. Provider Tax 

The provider tax is assessed by the State of Illinois based on occupied bed days. The 
tax is withheld from The Elms' reimbursements from the Illinois Department of 
Public Aid. 

P. Use of Estimates 

Management of the County has made certain estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenditures/ expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Investment of County funds, by statute, is vested with the County Treasurer. The 
Treasurer's investment policy guides the investments of the County. The investment policy 
permits the County to invest in instruments allowed by the Illinois Compiled Statutes 
(ILCS). These investments include deposits/ investments in insured commercial banks, 
savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, insured 
credit union shares, money market mutual funds with portfolios of securities issued or 
guaranteed by the United States or agreement to repurchase these same obligations, 
repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper rated within the three highest 
classifications by at least two standard rating services, and the Illinois Funds. 

It is the policy of the County to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the highest 
investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands 
of the County and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the investment of 
public funds, using the "prudent person" standard for managing the overall portfolio. The 
primary objectives of the policy are safety of principal, diversity, liquidity, yield, public 
confidence, positive community involvement, and investment period. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 

A. Deposits with Financial Institutions 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County's 
deposits may not be returned to it. To guard against credit risk for deposits with 
financial institutions the County's investment policy requires all deposits with 
financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance be collateralized at 
100% of market value of principal and accrued interest, with collateral held by an 
independent third party with whom the Treasurer has a custodial agreement. 

B. Investments 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. The County's investment policy does not limit investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. 

The County limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security 
will not pay its par value upon maturity, by limiting its investments to the top ratings 
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 

For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments that 
are in the possession of an outside party. The County limits its exposure to custodial 
credit risk by utilizing independent third party institutions, selected by the County, to 
act as custodian for its securities and collateral. 

Concentration of credit risk - The County places no limit on the amount the County 
may invest in any one issuer. 

3. COUNTY FARM 

On March 28, 1982, McDonough County was named an income beneficiary in the will of 
Blanche L. Martin. Under the terms of the will, the County received investments totaling 
$43,689 and approximately 120 acres of farm land. The principal of the investments 
cannot be invaded and the County cannot sell the farm land, but can manage and operate 
the farm. The net income from the investments and farm land shall be applied by the 
County toward the payment of the costs of operating and maintaining The Elms. In the 
event the County ceases to operate The Elms, or fails to follow the terms of the will, all 
property shall revert and go to the then heirs-at-law of Blanche L. Martin. The County 
Farm Fund is reported as a Permanent Fund. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS 

A. Governmental Activities 

Capital asset activity for the year ended November 30, 2012 consists of the following: 

Balances Balances 
December 1 Additions Retirements November 30 

Land $ 178,556 $ - $ - $ 178,556 
Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 178.556 178.556 

Buildings 2,482,220 2,482,220 
Building improvements 2,502,196 26,288 2,528,484 
Maintenance equipment 1,514,550 32,500 1,547,050 
Software 114,680 I 14,680 
Vehicles 686,782 204,342 78,396 812,728 
Office equipment 271,027 271,027 
Computer equipment 372,226 22,900 395,126 
Infrastructure 4,920,911 4,920,911 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 12,864,592 286,030 78,396 13,072,226 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (I ,438,697) (50,667) (1 ,489,364) 
Building improvements (1 '152,326) (90,366) (1 ,242,692) 
Maintenance equipment (I' 137,390) (62,835) ( 1 ,200,225) 
Software (77,532) (16, 170) (93,702) 
Vehicles (507,218) (96,603) 78,396 (525,425) 
Office equipment (236,164) (6,202) (242,366) 
Computer equipment (337,927) (7,359) (345,286) 
Infrastructure (1,908,655) (108,263) (2,016,918) 

Total accumulated depreciation (6, 795,909) (438A65) 78,396 (7,155,978) 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 6,068,683 (152A35) 5,916,248 

Total capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation $ 6 242 232 $ (152 435) $ - $ 6 Q24 8Q4 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS -Continued 

B. Business-type Activities- Continued 

Balances Balances 
December 1 Additions Retirements November 30 

Land, not depreciated $ 61A27 $ - $ - $ 61A27 

Bui1ding and improvements, 
land improvements/ 
landscaping 4,195,387 35,688 4,159,699 

Equipment, including vehicles 1.0172958 2IA39 102639 120282758 

Total capital assets - at cost, 
being depreciated 5l213l345 21A39 462327 52188A57 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Building and improvements, 

land improvements/ 
landscaping (2,617,783) (96,014) 35,688 (2,678, 1 09) 

Equipment, including vehicles (7552247) (812073) 102639 (8251681) 

Total accumulated depreciation (3)732030) (1772087) 46)27 (325032 790) 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 1.840.315 055.648) 1.684.667 

Total capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation $ 1 201 242 $ (155 648) $ - $ 1,246 024 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Judiciary and court related 
Corrections 
Transportation 
Public health and welfare 

Total depreciation expense- governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
The Elms Nursing Home 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

100,713 
75,985 

666 
42,197 

201,706 
17 198 

438 465 

177 Q87 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

5. ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND -AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER 
PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description. The County's defined benefit pension plans for Regular, Sheriffs Law 
Enforcement Personnel, and Elected County Official employees provide retirement and 
disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. The County's plan is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
(IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute 
and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not for individual employers. 
This report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org. 

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, 
are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest after eight 
years of service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 
60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement 
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of 
earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. 

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 
employees, pension benefits vest after 10 years of service. Participating members who 
retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years of credited 
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount 
equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 
years, and 2% for each year thereafter. 

County 

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the County's Regular plan members are required to 
contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statutes require employers to 
contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the 
retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer annual required contribution 
rate for calendar year 2012 was 11.11 percent. The County also contributes for disability 
benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at 
the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF 
Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute. 

Annual Pension Cost. For the fiscal year ending November 30, 2012, the County's 
annual pension cost of$945,321 for the Regular plan was equal to the County's 
required and actual contributions. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

5. ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER 
PENSION PLAN- Continued 

County 

Three-Year Trend Information for Regular Plan 

Period Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension 
Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation 

11/30/2012 $ 945,321 100% $ 
11130/2011 953,908 1 00°/o 
11130/2010 853,467 100% 

The required contribution for 2012 was determined as part of the December 31, 201 0 
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial 
assumptions at December 31, 2010, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return (net 
of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% 
a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4 
to 10.0 percent per year, depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and 
(d) post-retirement benefit increases of 3 percent annually. The actuarial value of the 
County's plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short­
term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20% 
corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The County's Regular plan's 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2010 is being amortized as a level 
percentage of projected payroll on an open 30 year basis. 

Funded Status and Funded Progress. As of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial 
valuation date, the Regular plan was 77.66 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability 
for benefits was $25,030,751 and the actuarial value of assets was $19,439,928, resulting in 
an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of$5,590,823. The covered payroll for 
calendar year 2012 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was 
$8,510,267 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 65.70 percent. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets in increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

5. ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER 
PENSION PLAN- Continued 

Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) 

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the County's Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel 
plan members are required to contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The 
statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member 
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer 
annual required contribution rate for calendar year 2012 was 21.93. The County also 
contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all 
of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death 
benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement 
benefits rate is set by statute. 

Annual Pension Cost. For fiscal year ending November 30, 2012, the County's annual 
pension cost of $180,91 7 for the Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel plan was equal 
to the County's required and actual contributions. 

Three-Year Trend Information for the Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel Plan 

Period Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension 
Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation 

11130/2012 $ 180,917 100% $ 
11/30/2011 191,320 100% 
11130/2010 176,040 100% 

The required contribution for 2012 was determined as part of the December 31, 201 0 
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial 
assumptions at December 31, 2010, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return (net 
of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% 
a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4 
to 10.0 percent per year, depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and 
(d) post-retirement benefit increases of3 percent annually. The actuarial value ofthe 
County's Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel plan assets was determined using 
techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market 
value of assets. The County's Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel plan's unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 201 0 is being amortized as a level percentage 
of projected payroll on an open 30 year basis. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

5. ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER 
PENSION PLAN - Continued 

Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) 

Funded Status and Funded Progress. As of December 31, 2012 the most recent actuarial 
valuation date, the Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel plan was 66.00 percent funded. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $3,513,054 and the actuarial value of assets 
was $2,318,710, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 
$1,194,344. The covered payroll for calendar year 2012 (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $828,447 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 144.17 percent. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

Elected County Official 

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the County's Elected County Official plan members 
are required to contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statute requires 
employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to 
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer annual required 
contribution rate for calendar year 2012 was 25.05 percent. The County also contributes 
for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which 
are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set 
by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by 
statute. 

Annual Pension Cost. For fiscal year ending November 30, 2012, the County's annual 
pension cost and net pension obligation were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension asset 
Adjustments to annual required contribution 

Annual pension cost 
Annual contributions made 

Increase in net pension asset 
Net pension obligation, beginning of year 
Net pension obligation, end of year 
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$ 

13,655 
129 
(92) 

13,692 
13.503 

189 
1.723 
1.912 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

5. ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER 
PENSION PLAN- Continued 

Elected County Official 

Three-Year Trend Information for the Elected County Official Plan 

Period Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension 
Ending Cost CAPC) APC Contributed Obligation 

11/30/2012 $ 13,692 98.62°/o $ 1,912 
11/30/2011 13,692 87.42o/o 1,723 
11/30/2010 9,522 1 00°/o 

The required contribution for 2012 was determined as part of the December 31, 201 0 
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial 
assumptions at December 31, 2010, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return (net 
of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% 
a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4 
to 10.0 percent per year, depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and 
(d) post-retirement benefit increases of3 percent annually. The actuarial value of the 
County's Elected County Official plan assets was determined using techniques that spread 
the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year 
period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The 
County's Elected County Official plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 
31, 2010 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 30 year 
basis. 

Funded Status and Funded Progress. As of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial 
valuation date, the Elected County Official plan was 87.24 percent funded. The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $477,884 and the actuarial value of assets was $416,903, 
resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $60,981. The covered 
payroll for calendar year 2012 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) 
was $54,375 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 112.15 percent. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets in increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

6. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The County offers its employees two different deferred compensation plans created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plans, available to all County 
employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The County is 
not required to make any contributions to the plans. The amounts deferred and earnings 
thereon, are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or 
unforeseeable em~rgency. 

Contributions by employees are administered by a third-party agent and the assets and 
income thereon are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their 
beneficiaries. 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT 

A. Leases Payable 

Office Building 

In March 1981, McDonough County entered into a non-cancelable lease agreement 
with the Macomb Public Building Commission (Building Commission) for the rental 
of County office space at 130-134 South Lafayette Street, Macomb, Illinois. The 
agreement called for an initial payment of $3 7,000 with annual rental payments of 
$20,000 for the years 1981 through 1991. In April1984 and 1999, the County entered 
into supplemental agreements with the Building Commission whereby the original 
lease was extended from April 1, 1991 with annual rental payments of $1. 

Payments are due by November 30 of each year. All insurance on the building and 
general public liability insurance is to be obtained by the Building Commission. The 
County is responsible for the maintenance, operations, and safekeeping of the offices 
that they are leasing. Currently, portions of this building are being rented to third 
parties. As long as the third party rent payments, made directly to the Building 
Commission, exceed the County's required annual payments, the County's payment 
will be waived by the Building Commission. After all outstanding indebtedness of the 
Building Commission has been paid in full, the Building Commission agrees to 
transfer by warranty deed the fee simple title of the building to the County upon the 
County's request. 

Equipment Leases 

On April 16, 2009, the County entered into a noncancelable lease agreement with RK 
Dixon Co. for the lease of a $14,994 copier. The agreement calls for monthly payments 
of$250 commencing May 15, 2009. The final payment is due April30, 2014. The 
balance due at November 30, 2012 was $4,498. The leased asset and related obligation 
are accounted for as business-type activities. The asset under the capital lease net of 
depreciation totaled $4,248 at November 30, 2012. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT- Continued 

A. Leases Payable - Continued 

Equipment Leases- Continued 

Following is a schedule of minimum future rental payments and the net present value of 
these minimum lease payments as ofNovember 30,2012 for the above equipment 
lease: 

Year ending November 30: 

Total minimum lease payments 

2013 
2014 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 

$ 

2,998 
1.500 
4.498 

On July 15, 2011, the County entered in to a capital lease agreement with Municipal 
Capital Corporation to finance the purchase of a pothole patching machine for the 
County Highway Department. The lease calls for three annual payments of$20,743 
with interest at 4.99 percent commencing on July 15, 2012 and ending July 15,2014. 
The leased asset and related obligation are accounted for as governmental activities. 
The asset under the capital lease net of depreciation totaled $48,496 at November 30, 
2012. 

Following is a schedule of minimum future rental payments and the net present value of 
these minimum lease payments as ofNovember 30,2012 for the above equipment 
lease: 

Year ending November 30: 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less: Amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 
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2013 
2014 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 20,743 
20,743 
41,486 

2.910 
$ 38.576 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT- Continued 

B. Notes Payable- Governmental Activities 

c. 

On October 7, 2011, the County entered into an agreement with Morton Community 
Bank to finance the repairs to the Health Department roof. The County borrowed 
$76,042 at an interest rate of 3.00 percent, to be paid in 36 monthly payments of 
$2,215, beginning November 20, 2011, with a final payment due on October 20, 2014. 
The principal balance of $46,980 due at November 30, 2012 is included in the notes 
payable of the County. This note is paid out of the County Health Fund. 

Following is a schedule of principal maturities by year for the above notes payable: 

Total Debt 
Fiscal Year PrinciQal Interest Service 

2013 $ 25,527 $ 1,057 $ 26,584 
2014 21A53 289 21)42 

Total $ 46.980 $ 1.346 $ 48.326 

Changes in Long-Term Debt 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended November 30, 2012 was as follows: 

Balances Balances Due Within 
December I Additions Reductions November 30 One Year 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital lease payable $ 56,500 $ - $ 17,924 $ 38,576 $ 18,818 
Notes payable 99,718 52,738 46,980 25,527 
Compensated absences 

payable 301,209 317,216 317,097 301,328 210,733 

Net OPEB obligation 77,438 32,655 110,093 

Net pension obligation 1:723 189 13912 
Governmental activity -

long-term liabilities $ 536 588 $ 350 060 $ 387 759 $ 498 889 $ 255 078 

Balances Balances Due Within 
December 1 Additions Reductions November 30 One Year 

Business-type activities: 

Leases payable $ 7,496 $ - $ 2,998 $ 4,498 $ 2,998 
Net OPEB obligation 53,932 15,836 69,768 
Compensated absences 

payable 153:154 1583939 1593886 1523207 152:207 
Business-type activity-

long-term liabilities $ 214 582 $ 1 :Z4 :z:zs $ 162 884 $ 226 473 $ ISS 2QS 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT- Continued 

C. Changes in Long-Term Debt- Continued 

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long­
term liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for governmental 
activities. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally 
liquidated by the General Fund, or the fund where the employee is paid their payroll on 
a regular basis. 

8. STATUTORY DEBT MARGIN 

A schedule indicating the statutory debt margin computation follows: 

2012 Assessed valuation 

Statutory debt limitation (2.875 percent of 
assessed valuation) 

Debt outstanding at November 30, 2012 

Statutory debt margin, November 30, 2012 

9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund receivable and payable balances at November 30, 2012 consist of: 

General Fund: 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
Social Security Fund 
Internal Service Funds 
Agency Funds 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund: 
General Fund 
Internal Service Funds 

Social Security Fund 
General Fund 
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Interfund 
Receivables 

$ 

6,853 
36,436 
11,000 
54,289 

2,692 

2.692 

2.577 

$ 379.673.907 

$ 10,915,625 

85.556 

$ 10.830.069 

$ 

Interfund 
Payables 

2,692 
2,577 

7 147 
12.416 

625.000 
625.000 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -Continued 

9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - Continued 

Interfund Interfund 
Receivables Payables 

County Health Fund 
Internal Service Funds $ $ 12,694 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1~682 

1~682 12=694 
The Elms: 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 689 
Internal Service Funds 9~165 

689 9~165 
Internal Service Funds: 

General Fund 6,853 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 625,000 
County Health Fund 12,694 
The Elms 9,165 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 5~708 

646~859 12=561 
Agency Funds: 

General Fund 36,436 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 9~007 112=632 

9=007 149=068 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 

General Fund 7,147 11,000 
County Health Fund 1,682 
The Elms 689 
Internal Service Funds 5,708 
Agency Funds 112,632 9,007 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 32125 3=125 

128=612 252503 
Total Interfund Receivables/Payables $ 846.407 $ 846.407 

The purposes of the significant interfund receivable and payable balances are as follows: 

• $36,436 due from Agency funds to the General fund. This balance relates to a) 
$35,810 accrued but unpaid fees received in the County Clerk fund and b) $626 
accrued but unpaid interest received in Agency funds. The County expects the 
obligation will be liquidated within one year. 

• $625,000 due to Internal Service funds from the Illinois Municipal Retirement fund . 
This balance relates to a loan to the Illinois Municipal Retirement fund to cover 
operating expenses. The County expects the obligation will be liquidated within one 
year. 
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS- Continued 

• $112,632 due to Nonmajor governmental funds from Agency funds. This balance 
relates to a) accrued but unpaid transfers of $105,481 from the Township Motor Fuel 
Tax fund to the Engineering Revolving fund and b) accrued but unpaid fees of$7,151 
from the County Clerk fund. The County expects the obligation will be liquidated 
within one year. 

Advances from/to other funds at November 30, 2012 consist of: 

General Fund: 
Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 

Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 
General Fund 

Total Interfund Receivables/Payables 

Interfund 
Receivables 

$ 

90,681 

$ 90.681 

Interfund 
Payables 

$ 90,681 

$ 90.681 

The purposes of the interfund advance receivable and payable balances are as follows: 

• $90,681 remaining advance from the Public Safety Sales Tax fund to the General fund 
to cover general County expenses. Repayment is not expected within one year. 

Interfund transfers during fiscal year ending November 30, 2012 consist of: 

General Fund: 
General Fund 
Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 
Internal Service Funds 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund: 
Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 

Public Safety Sales Tax Fund: 
General Fund 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

County Health Fund: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
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Transfers In 

$ 75,675 
250,000 

704 
452000 

371.379 

1 00~000 
100~000 

20.205 
20,205 

Transfers Out 

$ 75,675 

1.850 
77,525 

250,000 
100,000 

5.000 
355.000 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS -Continued 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
Internal Service Funds: 

General Fund $ - $ 704 
N orunaj or governmental funds 4 840 

5=544 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 

General Fund 1,850 45,000 
Public Safety Sales Tax Fund 5,000 
County Health Fund 20,205 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 524,176 524,176 
Internal Service Funds 4 840 

535=866 589.381 
Total interfund transfers $ 120222450 $ 120272450 

The purposes of the significant interfund transfers are as follows: 

• $75,675 transferred from the Sheriff sub-fund to the General Corporate sub-fund. This 
amount relates to fees received in the Sheriff fund. This transfer will not be repaid. 

• $250,000 transferred from the Public Safety Sales Tax fund to the General fund. This 
amount relates to a routine budgeted transfer. This transfer will not be repaid. 

• $45,000 transferred from the Nonmajor governmental funds to the General Fund. This 
amount relates to a routine budgeted transfer from the Insurance Reserve Fund. This 
transfer will not be repaid. 

• $100,000 transferred from the Public Safety Sales Tax fund to the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund to cover public safety employee retirement contributions. This 
transfer will not be repaid. 

• $20,205 transferred from Nonmajor governmental funds to the County Health fund. 
This amount relates to transfers from the Tuberculosis Fund for the administration of 
health services. This transfer will not be repaid. 

• $524,176 transferred between the Nonmajor governmental funds. This amount relates 
to a) transfers of$361,616 to the County Highway fund to repay roadway maintenance 
expenditures, b) transfers of $141,198 to the Equipment Replacement fund for 
replacement of equipment and vehicles on a scheduled basis, and c) transfer of 
$16,584 to the Engineering Revolving fund for repayment of engineering services, and 
d) transfer of$4,778 to the Federal Aid Matching fund to repay bridge construction 
costs. These transfers will not be repaid. 
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10. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS, JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS, AND 
JOINT VENTURES 

A. Related Organizations 

The County's officials are responsible for appointing members of the boards of other 
organizations, but the County's accountability for these organizations does not extend 
beyond making the appointments. The other organizations include various Cemetery 
Associations and Boards of Trustees of Fire Protection Districts in the County, the 
McDonough County Housing Authority, and McDonough District Hospital. 

B. Jointly Governed Organizations 

The County, in conjunction with the City of Macomb, Illinois created the Macomb 
Public Building Commission under the Public Building Commission Act. The 
Commission's board is composed of three members appointed by the City Council 
and two members appointed by the County Board. The County is involved as lessee in 
capital leases with the Commission as lessor as described in the preceding footnotes for 
leases payable. 

C. Joint Ventures 

The County is a participant with the City of Macomb, Illinois and the McDonough 
County Emergency Telephone System Board (ETSB) in a joint venture to operate a 
911 emergency services communication and dispatch enterprise. The Macomb/ 
McDonough Emergency Dispatch Center, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation, was 
created for that purpose. The corporation is governed by a six-member board 
composed of 1) the County Board Chairman or a County board member designated 
by the Chairman, 2) the County Sheriff or a designated full-time employee of the 
Sheriffs Department, 3) the City Mayor, 4) the City Police Chief, 5) the ETSB 
Chairman, and 6) the ETSB Secretary. The County, the City, and the ETSB each 
contributed various property, equipment, services, and/or funds for initial relocation 
and occupancy costs to the corporation. The County, the City, and the ETSB are 
each obligated by an intergovernmental cooperation agreement to pay one-third 
(1/3) of the costs of the corporation for wages, employee benefits, and normal office 
supplies. 

The ETSB's liability for operating costs during any fiscal year of the corporation is 
limited to a cap amount determined by the County, the City, and the ETSB. The 
County and the City share equally the amount of costs in excess of the determined cap 
of the ETSB's share of costs. The ETSB contributes to the corporation annually an 
amount sufficient to pay the entire cost of equipment installation, operation, 
maintenance, repair and replacement, employee training, and telephone line charges. 
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10. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS, JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS, AND 
JOINT VENTURES -Continued 

C. Joint Ventures - Continued 

The Center's fiscal year end is November 30. Separate audited financial statements are 
available through the Macomb/McDonough County Emergency Dispatch Center, Inc. 
Summarized financial information of the Center as of and for the year ended 
November 30, 2012, follows: 

Statement ofNet Assets Information 

Assets: 
Current assets 
Property and equipment, net 
Total assets 

Liabilities and net assets: 
Liabilities 
Net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 

Statement of Activities Information 

Operating revenue 
Operating expenses 
Operating net loss 
Nonoperating revenue 

Change in net assets 
Net assets, beginning 
Net assets, ending 

$ 273,162 
228~653 

$ 501.815 

$ 50,151 
451=664 

$ 5012815 

$ 841,686 
844.055 

(2,369) 
224 

2,145 
453.809 

$ 451.664 

The County is a participant with the Mercer County, Illinois and Warren County, 
Illinois in an intergovernmental agreement to jointly establish a regional solid waste 
management organization for the purpose of implementation of a regional solid 
waste management plan. The Tri-County Resource and Waste Management 
Council was created for that purpose. The Council is made up of equal 
representation from each county. Each county shall contribute funds for the 
preparation of the three-county Solid Waste Plan based on each county's population 
as a proportion of the total population of the three counties based upon the 1990 
Census of Population as published by the United States Department of Commerce. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

10. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS, JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS, AND 
JOINT VENTURES - Continued 

C. Joint Ventures- Continued 

The Council's fiscal year end is November 30. Separate audited financial statements 
are not available. Summarized financial information of the Council as of and for the 
year ended November 30, 2012, follows: 

Statement of Net Assets Information 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other receivables 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 

Liabilities and net assets: 
Liabilities 
Net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 

Statement of Activities Information 

Fees for services 
Investment income 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 

Change in fund balance 
Fund balance, beginning 
Fund balance, ending 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

11,013 
11,458 
9,007 

31.478 

18,307 
13J71 
31.478 

$ 114,669 
7 

114,676 
113,421 

1,555 
11.916 

$ 13.171 

A. General and Professional Liability, Property, Errors, and Omissions 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; health claims of 
employees; and natural disasters. The County purchases commercial insurance for all 
risks of loss, excluding group health care coverage and workers' compensation, which 
are described below. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT- Continued 

B. Workers' Compensation 

The County insures its risk of loss for employee injuries under workers' compensation 
laws by participating in the Illinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF) a public entity risk pool 
currently operating as a common risk management program for a number of Illinois 
counties. The County pays an annual "premium" to IPRF for its coverage. Annual 
audits of the County's payroll, workers' compensation claims, and employee job 
classifications are performed by IPRF. 

C. Group Health Plan 

Beginning July 1, 2001, the County uses an internal service fund to account for and 
finance its uninsured risks of loss related to its self-funded health insurance plan. 
Under this plan, the County is self-insured for the first $85,000 of covered charges per 
individual per year. Commercial insurance is carried for amounts in excess of self­
insured amounts. The County also maintains aggregate stop loss coverage with a 
maximum reimbursement of $1,000,000. Claims payable are reported in the accounts 
payable amount on the financial statements. Changes in claims liability for the self­
funded health insurance plan in fiscal years 2012 and 2011 are as follows: 

Balance at beginning of year 

Claims incurred 
Claims paid 

Balance at end of year 

12. ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

2012 
$ 124,097 

$ 

1,828,690 
1.860.968 

91.819 

2011 
$ 158,972 

$ 

2,259,033 
2.293,908 

124.097 

The County entered into an administration agreement for its self-funded health plan with 
Mutual Medical Plans, Inc. This agreement has a three-year term extending through 
November 30, 2014, and fees for services under this agreement are assessed at $16 per 
participant per month. Fees paid to Mutual Medical for administrative, clerical, and 
consulting services in fiscal2012 were $67,468. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

13. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATION 

In June 2008, the County issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 to 
provide financial assistance to a private-sector entity for the acquisition, construction, and 
installation of fixtures and equipment deemed to be in the public interest. In November 
2012, the County issued Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 
to refinance the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 and to finance the 
acquisition, construction, and installation of tuck pointing, a front entrance canopy, and a 
community center and therapy expansion project. The bonds are secured by the property 
financed and owned by the private-sector entity and are payable solely from payments 
received on the underlying mortgage loan. As ofNovember 30, 2012, the principal amount 
payable under these bonds was $6,250,000. Neither the County, the State, nor any political 
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, 
the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. 

14. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description 

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the County provides post­
employment health care and life insurance benefits (OPEB) for retired employees 
through a single employer defined benefit plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee 
contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the County and can be 
amended by the County through its personnel manual and union contracts, except for the 
implicit subsidy which is governed by the State Legislature and ILCS. The plan is not 
accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to account 
for the plan. The plan does not issue a separate report. 

Benefits Provided 

The County provides continued health insurance coverage at the blended employer rate to 
all eligible retirees in accordance with ILCS, which creates an implicit subsidy of retiree 
health insurance. To be eligible for benefits, an employee must qualify for retirement 
under the County's retirement plan. Upon a retiree reaching age 65 years of age, 
Medicare becomes the primary insurer and the retiree is no longer eligible to participate 
in the plan, but can purchase a Medicare supplement plan from the County's insure 
provider. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

14. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Membership 

At December 1, 2011 (latest information available), membership consisted of: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits 

Terminated employees entitled 
to benefits but not yet receiving them 

Active employees 

TOTAL 

Participating employers 

Funding Policy 

17 

230 

247 

1 

The County negotiates the contribution percentages between the County and employees 
through the union contracts and personnel policy. All retirees contribute 1 00%, of the 
blended premium to the plan and the County contributes the remainder to cover the cost 
of providing the benefits to the retirees via the insured plan (pay as you go). For the 
fiscal year ended November 30, 2012, retirees contributed $136,943 and the County 
contributed $50,904. Active employees do not contribute to the plan until retirement. 

Annual OPEB costs and Net OPEB Obligation 

The County had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of December 1, 2011 to 
determine the employer's annual required contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended 
November 30,2012. The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB 
cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal years 2012, 2011, and 
2010 were as follows: 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

14. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Annual OPEB costs and Net OPEB Obligation- Continued 

Fiscal Annual Percentage of 
Year OPEB Employer Alll1ual OPEB NetOPEB 

Ended Cost Contributions Cost Contributed Obligation 

November 30, 
2012 $ 99,395 $ 50,904 51.21% $ 179,861 

November 30, 
2011 82,878 41,560 50. I 5°/o 131,370 

November 30, 
2010 86,147 40,768 47.32% 90,052 

The net OPEB obligation (NOPEBO) as November 30, 20 I 2 (latest information 
available), was calculated as follows: 

Annual required contribution $ 97,862 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 5,912 
Adjustment to annual required contribution (4,379) 

AIU1ual OPEB cost 99,395 
Contributions made 50,904 

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 48,491 
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 131,370 

NET OPEB OBLIGATION END OF YEAR $ 179,861 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of December 1, 
201 I (latest information available), was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/ AAL) 
Covered payroll (active plan members) 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 
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$ 752,866 

$ 752,866 
0% 

$ 7,404,731 
I0.17% 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- Continued 

14. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS- Continued 

Annual OPEB costs and Net OPEB Obligation- Continued 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare 
cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual 
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results 
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting 
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and 
plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation 
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques 
that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the December I, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost 
method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.50% interest rate assumption 
and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.00% initially, reduced by decrements to an 
ultimate rate of 5.00%. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the County 
has not advance funded its obligation. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is 
being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis. The remaining amortization 
period at November 30, 2012, was 27 years. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued 

15. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

The County has restated beginning fund balance/net assets as of December 1, 2011 to a) 
correct understated receivables, b) correct understated payables, and c) correct overstated 
health department expenditures. 

County Nonmajor Governmental Business-Type 
General Health Governmental The Elms Activities Activities 

FUND BALANCE/ 
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 1 
(as previously reported) $ 1,226,060 $ 631,370 $ 4,972,239 $ 4,496,136 $ 15,926,174 $ 4,496,136 

Restated for 
a) Understated receivables 70,251 175,811 246,062 
b) Understated payables (26,590) (124,301) (26,590) (124,301) 
c) Overstated expenses 17,315 17,315 

FUND BALANCE/ 
NET ASSETS, 
DECEMBER 1 (as restated) $ 1,269,721 $ 648,685 $ 5,148.050 $ 4,371,835 $ 16,162,961 $ 4,371,835 

49 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

12/31/12 
12/31/11 
12/31/10 
12/31/09 
12/31/08 
12/31/07 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- COUNTY 

November 30,2012 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded 
Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered 
Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) 

$ 19,439,928 $ 25,030,751 $ 5,590,823 77.66% $ 8,510,267 
18,411,291 23,885,427 5,474,136 77.08% 8,364,495 
17,785,240 22,083,048 4,297,808 80.54% 8,237,702 
16,660,530 21,016,300 4,355,770 79.27% 8,164,521 
16,513,021 19,720,449 3,207,428 83.74% 7,918,421 
18,260,024 18,369,549 109,525 99.40% 7,585,834 

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
( (b-a) I c) 

65.70% 
65.44% 
52.17% 
53.35% 
40.51% 

1.44% 

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2012 is $20,144,829. On a market basis, 
the funded ratio would be 80.48 percent. 

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with 
McDonough County. They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for retirees is 
1 00 percent funded. 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL (SLEP) 

November 30, 2012 

Actuarial UAAL as a 
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) ( (b-a) I c) 

12/31112 $ 2,318,710 $ 3,513,054 $ 1,194,344 66.00% $ 828,447 144.17% 
12/31/11 2,090,875 3,534,329 1,443,454 59.16% 844,184. 170.99% 
12/31/10 2,476,401 3,689,799 1,213,398 67.11% 753,084 161.12% 
12/31/09 2,109,586 3,443,115 1,333,529 61.27% 738,651 180.54% 
12/31/08 1,791,594 3,179,984 1,388,390 56.34% 711,472 195.14% 
12/31/07 2,037,346 2,970,963 933,617 68.58% 693,066 134.71% 

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31,2012 is $2,425,839. On a market basis, 
the funded ratio would be 69.05 percent. 

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with 
McDonough County. They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for retirees is 
I 00 percent funded. 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETffiEMENT FUND- ELECTED COUNTY OFFICIALS (ECO) 

November 30,2012 

Actuarial UAALasa 
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered 
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) ( (b-a) I c) 

12/31112 $ 416,903 $ 477,884 $ 60,981 87.24% $ 54,375 112.15% 
12/31/11 367,066 436,066 69,000 84.18% 49,080 140.59% 
12/31/10 343,110 409,117 66,007 83.87% 49,322 133.83% 
12/31/09 307,421 389,352 81,931 78.96% 50,312 162.85o/o 
12/31/08 320,394 347,762 27,368 92.13% 78,097 35.04% 
12/31/07 426,335 528,426 102,091 80.68% 78,253 130.46% 

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2012 is $430,820. On a market basis, 
the funded ratio would be 90.15 percent. 

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with 
McDonough County. They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for retirees is 
1 00 percent funded. 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Actuarial 
Actuarial Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date (a) 

12/01/11 $ 

12/01/10 

12/01/09 

12/01/08 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN 

November 30, 2012 

Actuarial 
Accrued Unfunded 

Liability (AAL) AAL Funded 
Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio 

(b) (b-a) (alb) 

$ 752,866 $ 752,866 0.00% $ 

639,027 639,027 0.00% 

672,454 672,454 0.00% 

661 '134 661,134 O.OOo/o 

UAAL as a 
Percentage 

Covered of Covered 

Payroll Payroll 
(c) ( (b-a) I c) 

7,404,731 10.17% 

7,391,880 8.64% 

7,203,976 9.33o/o 

6,965,216 9.49% 

The County implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2009. Infonnation for 
prior years is not available. 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Year 
Ending 

11130/12 

11/30/11 

11/30/10 

11/30/09 

12/31/08 

12/31/07 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- COUNTY 

$ 

November 30, 201 2 

Annual 
Required 

Employer Contribution 
Contributions (ARC) 

945,321 $ 945,321 

953,908 953,908 

853,467 853,467 

685,452 685,452 

677,025 677,025 

653,899 653,899 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Percentage 
Contributed 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL (SLEP) 

Year 
Ending 

11130/12 $ 

11/30/11 

11/30110 

11/30/09 

12/31/08 

12/31/07 

November 30,2012 

Annual 
Required 

Employer Contribution 
Contributions (ARC) 

180,917 $ 180,917 

191,320 191,320 

176,040 176,040 

152,823 152,823 

155,385 155,385 

164,256 164,256 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Percentage 
Contributed 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND- ELECTED COUNTY OFFICIALS (ECO) 

Year 
Ending 

11130/12 $ 

11/30/11 

11130/10 

11/30/09 

12/31/08 

12/31/07 

November 30,2012 

Annual 
Required 

Employer Contribution 
Contributions (ARC) 

13,503 $ 13,692 

11,969 13,692 

9,522 9,522 

11,230 11,230 

21,071 21,071 

23,014 23,014 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Percentage 

Contributed 

98.62% 

87.42% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 



Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 

11/30/12 

11/30/11 

11/30/10 

11/30/09 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN 

$ 

November 30, 2012 

Annual 
Required 

Employer Contribution 
Contributions (ARC) 

50,904 $ 99,395 

41,560 81,776 

40,768 84,137 

36,397 81,071 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Percentage 
Contributed 

51.21% 

50.82% 

48.45% 

44.90%, 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- CASH BASIS 
GENERAL FUND 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original Amended 
Budget Budget 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 949,998 $ 949,998 
State of Illinois: 

Local use tax 100,000 100,000 
Sales tax 750,000 750,000 
Income tax 550,000 550,000 
Personal property replacement taxes 215,000 215,000 
State grants and expenditure reimbursements 289,647 293,647 

Federal revenue 72,515 96,719 
Fees for services and materials 1,102,837 1,130,737 
Investment income 5,500 5,500 
Other 102,000 140,500 

Total revenues 4,137,497 4,232,101 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 1,591,671 1,584,421 
Employee benefits 462,810 462,810 
Public safety 1,349,460 1,395,764 
Corrections 411,543 41 1,543 
Judiciary and court related 1,365,160 1,375,410 

Capital outlay 27,500 27,500 
Total expenditures 5,208,144 5,257,448 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
expenditures (1,070,647) ( 1,025,34 7) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 348,800 348,800 
Transfers out (51,850) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 348,800 296,950 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (721,847) $ (728,397) 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, 
PAYABLE, AND OTHER ACCRUED ITEMS 

SHERIFF FUND- SUBFUND ACTIVITY NOT BUDGETED 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, BEGil''NING 
OF YEAR 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
OF THE YEAR- RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, END OF YEAR 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Actual 

$ 958,858 

96,776 
795,234 
591,869 
173,766 
476,452 

89,605 
1,148,515 

3,349 
190,298 

4,524,722 

1,301,935 
427,913 

1,351,956 
341,849 

1,363,239 
12,371 

4,799,263 

(274,541) 

370,675 
(51,850) 

318,825 

44,284 

2,808 

3,805 

1,226,060 

43,661 

1,269,721 

$ 1,320,618 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- CASH BASIS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original 
Budget 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 970,230 
Replacement taxes 11,860 
Investment income 225 
Miscellaneous 2,500 

Total revenues 984,815 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Miscellaneous 2,500 
Employee benefits 1,058,490 

Total expenditures 1,060,990 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (76,175) 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (175,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (175,000) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (251,175) 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, 
PAYABLE, AND OTHER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, END OF YEAR 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Amended 
Budget 

$ 970,230 
11,860 

225 
2,500 

984,815 

1,060,990 

1,060,990 

(76,175) 

(175,000) 

(175,000) 

$ (251,175) 

Actual 

$ 969,143 
11,861 

315 
1,853 

983,172 

989,050 

989,050 

(5,878) 

100,000 

100,000 

94,122 

11,214 

33,603 

$ 138,939 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- CASH BASIS 
PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX FUND 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original 
Budget 

REVENUES 
Sales taxes $ 1,050,000 
Investment income 1,900 
Other 6,500 

Total revenues I ,058,400 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Employee benefits 390,210 
Public safety 320,388 
Corrections 214,255 

Capital outlay 85,000 

Total expenditures 1,009,853 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 48,547 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers out (265,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (265,000) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (216,453) 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, 
PAY ABLE, AND OTHER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, END OF YEAR 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Amended 
Budget 

$ 1,050,000 
1,900 

20,526 

1,072,426 

390,210 
346,414 
214,255 

73,000 

1,023,879 

48,547 

(365,000) 

(365,000) 

$ (316,453) 

Actual 

$ 1,155,798 
2,397 

25,744 

1,183,939 

364,963 
309,272 
199,414 
65,340 

938,989 

244,950 

(355,000) 

(355,000) 

(110,050) 

(19,825) 

898,203 

$ 768,328 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- CASH BASIS 
SOCIAL SECURITY FUND 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original 
Budget 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 672,332 
Investment income 500 
Other 2,500 

Total revenues 675,332 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Employee benefits 653,470 

Total expenditures 653,470 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
expenditures 

NETCHANGEINFUNDBALANCES $ 21,862 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, 
PAYABLE, AND OTHER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, END OF YEAR 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Amended 
Budget 

$ 672,332 
500 

2,500 

675,332 

653,470 

653,470 

$ ' 21,862 

Actual 

$ 671,596 
619 

1,836 

674,051 

623,078 

623,078 

50,973 

II, 768 

727,021 

$ 789,762 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- CASH BASIS 
COUNTY HEALTH FUND 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original Amended 
Budget Budget 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 301,785 $ 301,785 
State grant and expenditure reimbursements 70,641 70,641 
Federal revenue 321,496 321,496 
Fees for services and materials 186,601 186,601 
Investment income 
Other 3,500 3,500 

Total revenues 884,023 884,023 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public health 844,725 844,725 
Capital outlay 50,000 50,000 

Total expenditures 894,725 894,725 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over {10,702) (10,702) 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (10,702) $ (10,702) 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, 
PAYABLE, AND OTHER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
OFTHEYEAR-RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES, GAAP BASIS, END OF YEAR 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Actual 

$ 301,457 
145,426 
106,159 
209,832 

254 
1,688 

764,816 

800,923 
79,609 

880,532 

(115,716) 

23,698 

23,698 

(92,018) 

152,287 

631,370 

17,315 

648,685 

$ 708,954 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
NOVEMBER 30, 2012 

1. BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The County adopts an annual budget and appropriation ordinance in accordance with 
Chapter 55 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes. The budget covers the fiscal year ending 
November 30, and is available for public inspection at least fifteen days prior to final 
adoption. All appropriations cease with the close of the fiscal year. The budget document 
is prepared for all budgetary funds on the cash basis and includes a statement of the 
revenues collected and expenditures paid of the immediately preceding fiscal year and a 
projection of the revenues collected and the proposed itemized appropriations for the 
ensuing fiscal year. A fiscal year budget was not prepared for the Sheriff sub-fund, County 
Motor Fuel Tax Fund, State's Attorney Recorders Automation Fund, Circuit Clerk 
Electronic Citation Fund, Adult Redeploy Grant Fund, and the County Farm Fund. 

Once the County budget has been adopted, no further appropriations shall be made during 
the year except in the event of an immediate emergency, at which time the County Board 
by a two-thirds vote may make appropriations in excess of those authorized in the budget. 
Neither the County Board, nor the agent on its behalf, shall have the power to make any 
contract, or do any act, which will add to the County expenditures in any year above the 
amount provided in the budget for that fiscal year. Nothing in the statutes shall deprive the 
Board of the power to provide for and pay from County funds any charge upon the County 
imposed by law independent of any action of the Board. The level of control (level at 
which expenditures may not exceed budget) is the fund total, not the individual line items. 
During the year, it was deemed necessary for the Board to approve several supplementary 
appropriations. 

2. RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY BASIS TO GAAP BASIS 

The budgetary comparison schedules present comparisons of the budget on a cash basis 
with actual data on the cash basis. Because accounting principles applied for purposes of 
developing data on a budgetary basis differ from those used to present basic financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a 
reconciliation of resultant basis and timing differences in the excess (deficiency) of revenue 
over expenditures for the year ended November 30, 2012 is presented on each budgetary 
comparison schedule in the line item titled "Reconciliation to modified accrual basis - net 
change resulting from recording accounts receivable, payable, and other accrued items." 
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McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- Continued 

3. EXCESS OVER BUDGET 

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of certain information 
concerning individual funds (which are presented only in combination on the basic 
financial statements). Funds with overexpended appropriations during the year are required 
to be disclosed. 

The following budgeted funds had an excess of expenditures over appropriations for the 
year ended November 30, 2012: 

Appropriations Expenditures 

Drug Enforcement Fund $ 11,000 $ 23,103 
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STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET- BY SUBFUND 

GENERAL FUND 
November 30,2012 

General 
Corporate Sheriff 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash equivalents $ 959,052 $ 
Receivables, net: 

State of Illinois 360,882 
Property taxes 990,900 
Other 87,475 

Due from other funds 57,005 
Inventories 9,735 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,465,049 $ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 63,779 $ 
Due to others 
Due to other funds 12,416 
Deferred revenue 990,900 
Advances from other funds 90,681 

Total liabilities 1,157,776 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable - inventories 9,735 
Restricted for public safety 
Unrestricted: 

Unassigned I ,297,538 

Total fund balances 1,307,273 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 2,465,049 $ 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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16,370 

(2,716) 

13,654 

309 

309 

13,345 

13,345 

13,654 

Total 
General 

Fund 

$ 975,422 

360,882 
990,900 

87,475 
54,289 

9,735 

$ 2,478,703 

$ 63,779 
309 

12,416 
990,900 

90,681 

1 '158,085 

9,735 
13,345 

1,297,538 

1,320,618 

$ 2,478,703 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY SUBFUND 
GENERAL FUND 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

General 
Cor~orate Sheriff 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 958,858 $ 
State of Illinois: 

Local use tax 96,776 
Sales tax 795,226 
Income tax 566,765 
Personal property replacement taxes 173,766 
State grants and expenditure 

reimbursements 440,824 
Federal revenue 53,074 
Fees for services and materials 1,169,146 
Investment income 2,645 
Other 191,917 

Total revenues 4,448,997 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 1,411,058 
Public safety 1,466,650 
Corrections 348,776 
Judiciary and court related 1,532,608 

Capital outlay 12,342 
Total expenditures 4,771,434 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over 
expenditures (322,437) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 371,379 
Transfers out (1,850~ 

Total other financing sources (uses) 369,529 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 47,092 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,216,520 

Prior period adjustment 43,661 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
OFTHE YEAR-RESTATED 1,260,181 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 1,307,273 $ 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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2,175 

91,302 
5 

93,482 

14,002 

14,002 

79,480 

F5,675) 

~75,675~ 

3,805 

9,540 

9,540 

13,345 

Total 
General 

Fund 

$ 958,858 

96,776 
795,226 
566,765 
173,766 

442,999 
53,074 

1,260,448 
2,650 

191,917 
4,542,479 

1,411,058 
1,480,652 

348,776 
1,532,608 

12,342 
4,785,436 

(242,957) 

371,379 
(77,525) 

293,854 

50,897 

1,226,060 

43,661 

1,269,721 

$ 1,320,618 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF CERTAIN REVENUE ITEMS 

GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended November 30, 2012 

FEES FOR SERVICES AND MATERIALS 
General Corporate: 

Coroner's report fees 
Vending machines 
Maintenance salary reimbursement 
State's attorney collections 
County Clerk fees 
Circuit Clerk fines 
Circuit Clerk fees 
Industry police protection 
Sheriff- interstate transfer fee 

Total 

Sheriff: 
Process dockets 
Foreign service 
Transportation and boarding of prisoners 
Board bill - work release 
Other 

Total 

TOTAL FEES FOR SERVICES AND MATERIALS 

OTHER 
General Corporate: 

Tax penalties, interest, and costs 
TIF surplus 
Landfill host fees 
Insight franchise fees 
Worker's compensation payment 
Miscellaneous 
Reimburse telephone- other funds 

TOTAL OTHER 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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$ 305 
257 

42,387 
478 

279,324 
658,547 
179,183 

8,325 
340 

1,169,146 

20,760 
2,456 
1,620 

22,660 
43,806 
91,302 

$ 1,260,448 

$ 60,502 
10,637 
63,642 
19,464 

90 
28,015 

9,567 

$ 191,917 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES- CASH BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
County Board: 

Members per diem 
Mileage 
Administrative assistant 
Office supplies 
County dues 
Other 

County Treasurer: 
Salary 
Deputy clerk salaries 
Office supplies and expense 

County Clerk: 
Salary 
Deputy clerk salaries 
Office supplies and expense 
Recording births and deaths 

Microfilming Department: 
Salary 
Supplies 

Elections: 
Building and equipment rental 
Judges 
Election supplies 
Printing and publications of ballots 
HAVA grant 
Computer equipment 
Deputy clerk salaries 

Year Ended November 30, 2012 

Original Amended 
Appropriations Appropriations 

$ 50,960 $ 50,960 
10,000 10,000 
11,940 11,940 
3,000 3,000 
3,000 3,000 
3,250 3,250 

82,150 82,150 

47,755 47,755 
61,000 61,000 
12,692 12,692 

121,447 121,447 

47,755 47,755 
113,609 113,609 

5,100 5,085 
675 690 

167,139 167,139 

25,800 25,800 
3,990 3,990 

29,790 29,790 

1,760 1,760 
37,500 39,675 
45,000 45,000 

600 600 
20,000 20,000 
23,000 23,000 
28,500 26,325 

156,360 156,360 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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$ 

Expenditures 
Paid 

45,952 
8,246 

11,939 
2,038 
2,500 
1,705 

72,380 

47,755 
42,992 

8,154 
98,901 

47,755 
111,159 

5,073 
688 

164,675 

25,800 
3,966 

29,766 

1,760 
39,628 
45,000 

535 
7,975 

22,865 
25,931 

143,694 
(Continued) 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES- CASH BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) 
Supervisor of Assessments: 

Salary- Supervisor 
Deputy clerk salaries 
Office supplies 
Mileage, education, and dues 
Pub 1 ications 

Board of Review: 
Salaries 
Appraisals and administration 
Mileage, supplies, and meetings 

Building and Grounds: 
Maintenance supervisor salary 
Salaries - maintenance personnel 
Building supplies 
Contractual 
Janitorial supplies 
Reimbursement expense 
Telephone and phone repairs 
Utilities 

Network Administrator 
Salary 
Supplies 
Equipment 
Miscellaneous 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original 
Appropriations 

$ 47,755 

81' 161 
5,300 
9,000 

14,000 
157,216 

13,525 
1,500 

700 
15,725 

64,373 
53,000 
11,000 
28,000 

6,000 
2,700 

58,000 
90,000 

313,073 

40,858 
800 
500 
500 

42,658 

Amended 
Appropriations 

$ 47,755 
81,161 

5,800 
9,000 

13,500 
157,216 

13,525 
1,500 

700 
15,725 

64,373 
53,000 
11,000 
28,000 

6,000 
2,700 

63,000 
85,000 

313,073 

40,858 
800 
500 
500 

42,658 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Expenditures 
Paid 

$ 47,755 
81,161 

5,563 
6,338 
6,076 

146,893 

13,524 
157 
497 

14,178 

64,373 
41,500 

6,767 
23,356 

3,055 
2,400 

57,486 
50,546 

249,483 

40,858 
448 

137 
41,443 

(Continued) 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES- CASH BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended November 30, 2012 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) 
Regional Office of Superintendent of 

Educational Service: 
Allocated portion of joint cost 

Office improvement 
Comprehensive Plan 
Contingency 

Other: 
Surety bonds 
W.I.R.C. dues 
Postage 
Preparation of budget 
Revenue stamps 
Training and education 
Computer service 
Audits 
MAID CO 
Accounting and consulting services 

Total General Government 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
Police Protection - Sheriff: 

Sheriff salary 
Deputies, Dispatchers, and Jailers' salaries 
Deputy pay - call-out, court 
Deputy and Jailer overtime 
Deputy and Jailer life insurance 
Courthouse security salaries 
Courthouse security overtime 
Courthouse security - Bailiff's 
Courthouse security equipment 
Courthouse security uniforms 
Office supplies 
Radio repair and maintenance 
Grant 
Miscellaneous 
Monthly access fee 

Original 
Appropriations 

$ 54,268 
10,000 
17,500 

100,000 
181,768 

3,500 
3,600 

50,000 
2,000 

85,000 
8,500 

70,000 
84,745 

5,000 
12,000 

324,345 

1,591,671 

462,810 

70,456 
848,265 

8,500 
93,000 

520 
80,580 
10,000 
3,000 
3,000 
2,000 

13,000 
25,000 

32,000 
7,500 

1' 196,821 

Amended 
Appropriations 

$ 54,268 
10,000 
17,500 
92,750 

174,518 

3,500 
3,600 

50,000 
2,000 

85,000 
8,500 

70,000 
84,745 

5,000 
12,000 

324,345 

1,584,421 

462,810 

70,456 
852,565 

8,500 
100,000 

520 
80,580 
14,000 
3,000 

21,100 
2,000 

13,000 
22,000 
24,204 
19,700 
7,500 

1,239,125 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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$ 

Expenditures 
Paid 

54,268 

17,500 

71,768 

1,537 
3,561 

43,313 

75,000 
5,496 

40,573 
84,745 

5,000 
9,529 

268,754 

1,301,935 

427,913 

70,456 
852,466 

8,046 
95,793 

80,414 
13,478 
2,430 

18,391 
1,228 
9,254 

21,977 
24,204 
16,720 
7,257 

1,222,114 
(Continued) 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES- CASH BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued) 
Civil Defense: 

Director salary 
Part time secretary 
Travel 
Local emergency planning 
Pre hazard mitigation 
TICP 
ITTF narrowband grant 
ILEAS EOC grant 
Office supplies 
Equipment and contractual 

Coroner: 
Salary 
Office supplies and education 
Transportation 
Professional services 
Medical and contractual 
Coroner's grant expense 
Reimbursable expense 

Total Public Safety 

CORRECTIONS 
Juvenile Probation Officer: 

Child Care 

Adult Probation Officer: 
County share of joint cost 

Total Corrections 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original 
Appropriations 

$ 15,044 
250 

2,560 
1,500 
5,718 

24,500 
3,297 

29,000 
2,200 
6,000 

90,069 

27,700 
4,500 
7,100 

13,570 
8,500 

1,200 
62,570 

1,349,460 

130,000 

281,543 

411,543 

Amended 
Appropriations 

$ 15,044 
250 

2,560 
1,500 
5,718 

24,500 
3,297 

29,000 
2,200 
6,000 

90,069 

27,700 
5,200 
7,100 

12,870 
8,500 
4,000 
1,200 

66,570 

1,395,764 

130,000 

281,543 

411,543 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Expenditures 
Paid 

$ 15,044 

656 

5,718 
19,900 
3,297 

26,229 
1,160 
1,695 

73,699 

27,700 
5,162 
3,187 
7,426 
7,585 
3,883 
1,200 

56,143 

1,351,956 

60,306 

281,543 

341,849 
(Continued) 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES- CASH BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

JUDICIARY AND COURT RELATED 
State's Attorney: 

Salary 
Assistants 
Collection Specialist salary 
Secretary salaries 
Grant victim/witness salaries 
Investigator 
Witness fees 
Office supplies and maintenance 
Appellate Prosecutor 
Court ordered medical 

Courts: 
Circuit and Associated Judges' salary 
County share Chief Judge 
Office supplies and expense 
Administrative secretary 
Court appointed attorneys 
Court appointed transcripts and 

miscellaneous 
Jurors' meals and lodging 
Jury certificates 
Jury commissioner 
Jury commission supplies 
Translator 
Drug court claim 

Public Defender: 
Public Defender 
Office Manager 
Secretary 
Assistant PD 1 
Assistant PD 2 
Court ordered medical 
Office supplies and expense 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original 
Appropriations 

$ 166,508 
134,713 
22,947 
85,475 
2,000 

16,063 
2,400 

10,000 
11,000 
5,000 

456,106 

1,500 
4,305 
7,500 

39,473 
125,000 

150 
650 

10,000 
8,613 

200 
1,000 

198,391 

166,508 
37,525 
12,635 
78,047 
54,095 

1,500 
9,000 

359,310 

Amended 
Appropriations 

$ 166,508 
134,713 
22,947 
85,475 

2,000 
16,063 
2,550 

10,000 
11,000 
4,850 

456,106 

1,500 
4,305 
8,140 

39,473 
130,000 

150 
650 

10,000 
8,613. 

200 
360 

3,000 
206,391 

166,508 
37,525 
12,635 
78,047 
54,095 

3,750 
9,000 

361,560 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Expenditures 
Paid 

$ 166,508 
131,893 
22,946 
85,474 
2,000 

16,063 
2,481 
9,980 

11,000 
888 

449,233 

1,462 
4,303 
8,138 

39,473 
129,122 

45 
280 

8,890 
8,613 

193 
148 
930 

201,597 

166,508 
37,525 
12,582 
78,047 
54,095 

3,475 
8,824 

361,056 
(Continued) 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES- CASH BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended November 30,2012 

Original Amended 
Appropriations Appropriations 

JUDICIARY AND COURT RELATED (Continued) 
Circuit Clerk: 

Salary $ 47,755 $ 47,755 
Deputy clerk salaries 303,598 303,598 

351,353 351,353 

Total Judiciary and Court Related l ,365,160 1,375,410 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Equipment purchases 20,000 20,000 
Computer purchases 7,500 7,500 

Total capital outlay 27,500 27,500 

TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS 51,850 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 5,208,144 $ 5,309,298 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Expenditures 
Paid 

$ 47,755 
303,598 
351,353 

1,363,239 

6,196 
6,175 

12,371 

51,850 

$ 4,851,113 

(Concluded) 



McOONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SJIEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
NovemberlO, 2012 

Debt Service Caj!ital Projects Permanent 
Capital Total 

Special Insurance Equipment Improvement Nonmajor 
Revenue Bond Replacement & Equipment County Farm Governmental 

Funds Funds Funds Fund Fund Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents s 4,132,704 s 51 s 172,469 s 7.840 s 46,511 s 4,359,575 
Investments 275,000 43,689 318,689 
Receivables, net: 

State of Illinois 42,284 42,284 
Property taxes 1.653,037 1,653,037 
Other 25,370 25,370 

Due from other funds 125,912 2,700 128,612 
Due from component unit 17,138 17,138 
Prepaid items 179 662 179 662 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,451,107 $ 51 $ 172 469 $ 10 540 s 90,200 $ 6 724,367 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
-....! 
~ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 71,618 $ s s s s 71,618 
Due to others 43,689 43,689 
Due to other funds 24,814 689 25,503 
Deferred revenue 1,653,037 1,653,037 

Total liabilities 1,749,469 44,378 1,793,847 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendablc - prepaids 179,662 179,662 
Restricted for highways and streets 1,643,564 1,643.564 
Restricted for public safety 45,231 45,231 
Restricted for economic development 92,218 92,218 
Restricted for health and welfare 595,139 45,822 640,961 
Restricted for specific purpose 1,544,667 1,544,667 
Unrestricted 

Committed for highways and streets 343,322 343,322 
Assigned for highways and streets 160,271 160,271 
Assigned for public safety 106 106 
Assigned for economic development 28 28 
Assicncd for health and welfare 11,726 11.726 
Assigned for specific purpose 85,704 51 172,469 10,540 268,764 

Total fund balances 4,701,638 51 172 469 10,540 45,822 4,930,520 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES s 6451107 s Sl s 172 469 s 10 S40 s 90,200 6.724,367 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Repon. 



McDONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended November JO. 2011 

Debt Service 
Fund Cal!ital Projects Funds Permanent 

Capital Total 
Special Insurance Equipment Improvement Nonmajor 
Revenue Bond Replacement & Equipment County Farm Governmental 
Funds Funds Funds Fund Fund Funds 

REVENUE 
Propcny taxes $ 1,615,964 $ $ $ $ s 1,615,964 
State of Illinois: 

Motor fuel tax allotments 363,279 363,279 
State grants and expenditure 

reimbursements 271,884 271,884 
Fees for services and materials 770,721 770,721 
Investment income 10,717 690 SIS 11,926 
Other 248,219 6838 22 357 277,414 

Total revenues 3 280,784 7 S28 22 872 3,3 I 1,188 

EXPENDITURES 
Cu!Tent: 

Gcncnd government 273,111 2,943 276,054 
Public safety 20,637 20,637 
Corrections 268,823 268,823 
Judiciary and court related 253,814 253,814 

-....) Public hcallh 561,585 30,390 591,915 
Vt Public welfare 218,714 218,714 

Transportation 1,567,022 1,567,022 
Capiutl outlay 47 164 225,000 272,164 

Total expenditures 3,216,870 225,000 33,333 J 475 203 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over cxpendi!Wl:s 63 914 {217,472) (10,461) (164,015) 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 389,828 141,198 4,840 535,866 
Transfers out (589,381) (589,381) 

Total other financing sources (uses) {199,553) 141 198 4 840 (53,515) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (135,639) (76,274) 4 (5,621) (217,530) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF VEAR 4,693,661 51 216,S48 10,536 51,443 4,972,239 

l'rior period adjustment 143,616 32 195 175 811 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF 
YF.AR. RESTATED 4,837 277 51 248 743 10 536 51,443 5,148,050 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 4,701,638 $ 51 $ 172469 s 10540 s 45 822 s 4 930 520 

Sec accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SIIEET 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
NovemberJO, 1011 

Counly Federal 
Coonly Coonly Aid to Aid Engineering Veterans' 

Highway Motor Fuel Bridges Matching Revolving Tuberculosis Assistance 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 667,052 s 224,149 s 194,028 s 621,492 s 63,219 s 39,528 s 112,574 
Investments 100.000 175,000 
Receivables, net: 

Stale of Illinois 31,671 
Property taxes 270,265 148,134 184,855 33,200 62,843 
Other 

Due from other funds 105,481 
Due from component unit 17,138 
Prepaid items 

TOTAL ASSETS s 954,455 s 255,820 s 442,162 s 806 347 s 343,700 s 72 728 s 175 417 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

-J Accounts payable s 35,007 s 1,126 s 2,989 s 12,573 s 378 s s 2,073 
0\ Due to other funds 1,682 

Deferred revenue 270,265 148,134 184,855 33,200 62 843 
Total1iabilities 305,272 I 126 151,123 197 428 378 34,882 64,916 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable - prcpaids 
Restricted for highways and streets 622,982 254,694 156,969 608.919 
Restricted for public safely 
Restricted for economic development 
Restricted for health and welfare 37,814 110,287 
Restricted for speci lie purpose 
Unrestricted 

Committed for highways and streets 343,322 
Assigned for highways and streets 26,201 134,070 
Assigned for public safety 
Assigned for economic development 
Assigned for health and welfare 32 214 
Assigned for specific purpose 

Total fund balances 649,183 254 694 291,039 608,919 343.322 37,846 110,501 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES s 954!455 s 255,820 s 442,162 s 8061347 s 343,700 s 72,728 $ 175 417 

(Continued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
November 30, 2012 

Building Cooperative Animal Mental Law Recorder Court 
Rental Extension Control Health Library Automation Automation 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s $ $ 153,164 $ 53,189 $ 23,307 s 41,181 $ 101,064 
lnvestmCflts 
Receivables, net: 

Slate of Illinois 
Propeny taxes 350,000 167,453 369,672 
01her 14,024 

Due liom other funds 2,247 
Due liom component unit 
Prepaid items 179,662 

TOTAL ASSETS s 350,000 s 167453 $ 167 188 s 602,523 $ 23,307 $ 43 428 $ 101 064 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

-...) Accounts payable $ $ s 2,147 s $ $ s 
-...) Due to other funds 

Deferred revenue 350,000 167,453 369,672 
T otalliabilitics 350,000 167,453 2 147 369,672 

Fund balances: 
NonspCI~dablc - prepaids 179,662 
Restricted for highways and streets 
Restricted for public safety 
Restricted for economic development 
Restricted for health and welfare 163,933 53,064 
Restricted for specific purpose 23,266 43,344 101,064 
Unrestricted 

Committed for highways and streets 
Assigned for highways and streets 
Assigned for public safety 
Assigned for economic development 
Assigned for health and welfare 1,108 125 
Assigned for specific purpose 41 84 

Total fund balances 165041 232,851 23 307 43,428 101064 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 350,000 $ 167!453 s 167,188 $ 602,523 $ 23 307 s 431428 s 101 064 
{Continued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McOONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
November 30, lOll 

Vital Senior State's 
Records Drug Citizens' Support Attorney Treasurer's Document 

Automation Enfon;ement Transportation Processing Victim/Witness Automation Storage 
Fund Fund Fund Fund fund Fund fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,379 $ 26,187 $ 83,275 s 20,517 $ 7,254 s 41,710 s 90,921 
lnveslments 
Receivables. net: 

Slate of Illinois 6,000 4,613 
Property taxes 44,815 
Otl1er 

Due &om other funds 464 3,008 
Due from component unit 
Prepaid items 

TOTAL ASSETS s 23,843 $ 26,187 $ 128,090 s 26 517 $ 14 875 $ 41 710 s 90,921 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

--..) Acx:ounts payable s 175 $ $ $ $ s s 531 
00 Due to other funds 14,125 

Deferred revenue 44 815 
Total liabilities 175 44,815 14,125 531 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable • prepaids 
Restricted for highways and streets 
Restricted for public safety 26,131 
Restricted for economic development 
Restricted for health and welfare 
Restricted for specific purpose 23,633 26,517 745 41,647 90,249 
Unrestricted 

Committed for highways and streets 
Assigned for highways and streets 
Assigned for public safety 56 
Assigned for economic development 
Assigned for health and welfare 
Assigned for specific purpose 35 83,275 63 141 

Total fund balances 23,668 26,187 83,275 26,517 750 41 710 90,390 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES s 23,843 s 26 187 $ 128,090 $ 26 517 $ 14,875 s 41 710 s 90921 

(Continued) 

Sec accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGH COUNTY,ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
November 30, 2012 

State's 
County Economic Court Arrestees' Sheritrs Attorney 
Waste Development System Medical DUI Drug GIS 

Management Revolving Maintenance Cost Equipment Enforcement Fee 
Fund Loan Fund Fund ~·und Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s 119,097 s s 110,615 s 5,619 s 10,015 s 6,384 s 78,413 
Investments 
Receivables, net: 

State of Dlinois 
Property taxes 21,800 
Other 11,346 

Due from other funds 7,147 4,070 
Due from component unit 
Prepaid items 

TOTAL ASSETS s 137,590 s 21,800 s 110,615 s 5 619 $ 10,015 $ 6 384 $ 82,483 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

-....] Accounts payable s 5,488 s s s 2,868 s s s 6,246 
\0 Due to oU1er funds 9,007 

Deferred revenue 21,800 
Total liabilities 14,495 21,800 2,868 6,246 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable • prcpaids 
Restricted for highways and streets 
Restricted for public safety 2,751 10,006 6.)43 
Restricted for economic development 76,237 
Restricted for health and welfare 123,035 
Restricted for specific plUJlOSe 110,353 
Unrestricted 

Committed for highways and streets 
Assigned for highways and streets 
Assigned for public safety 9 41 
Assigned for economic development 
Assigned for health and welfare 60 
Assigned for specific purpose 262 

Total fund balances 123,095 110,615 2,751 10,015 6384 76,237 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES s 137 590 $ 21 800 s 110,615 s 5,619 s 10,015 s 6 384 s 82 483 

(C011tinued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
November 30, 2012 

County State's USDA Animal Animal 
Clerk Attorney Child Solid Control Pet Insurance Child 

GIS Fee Advocacy Waste Memorial Population Reserve Advocacy 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents s IS,639 s 38,553 $ 100 $ 54,500 s 62,610 s 1,008,800 s 27,133 
lnveslmcnts 
Receivables, net: 

State of Illinois 
Property taxes 
Other 

Due from other funds 370 3.125 
Due from component unit 
Prepaid items 

TOTAL ASSETS s 16009 s 41,678 s 100 $ 54 500 $ 62,610 $ 1,008,800 $ 27,133 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

00 Accounts payable s $ s $ 17 $ s $ 
0 Due to other funds 

Deferred revenue 
T Dial liabilities 17 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable- prepaids 
Restricted for highways and streets 
Restricted for public safety 
Restricted for economic development 15,981 
Restricted for health and welfare 100 44,384 62,522 
Restricted for specific purpose 41,647 1,007,033 27,133 
Unrestricted 

Committed for highways and streets 
Assigned for highways and streets 
Assigned for public safety 
Assigned for economic development 28 
Assigned for health and welfare 10,099 88 
Assigned for specific purpose 31 1,767 

Total fund balances 16,009 41,678 100 54,483 62,610 1,008,800 27,133 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES s 16009 s 41,678 s 100 s 54,500 s 62,610 $ 1,008,800 s 27,133 
(Continued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
November 30, lOU 

Total 
Circuit Clerk State's Attorney Adult Nonmajor 

Coroner's Electronic Recorders Redeploy Special 
Automation Citation Automation Grant Revenue 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash rutd cash equivalents $ 4,160 s 3,248 s 628 s $ 4,132,704 
Investments 275,000 
Receivables, net: 

Slate of Illinois 42,284 
Property taxes 1,653,037 
Other 25,370 

Due from other funds 125,912 
Due from component unit 17,138 
Prepaid items 179 662 

TOTAL ASSETS s 4 160 $ 3 248 $ 628 s s 6,451,107 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

00 Accounts payable s s s s s 71,618 
Due to other funds 24,814 
Deferred revenue 1,653,037 

Total liabilities 1,749,469 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendablc - prcpaids 179,662 
Restricted for highways and sttects 1,643,564 
Restricted for public safety 45.231 
Restricted for economic development 92,218 
Restricted for health and welfare 595,139 
Restricted for specific purpose 4,160 3,248 628 1,544,667 
Unrestricted 

Committed for highways and streets 343,322 
Assigned for highways and streets 160,271 
Assigned for public safety 106 
Assigned for economic development 28 
Assigned for health and welfare 11,726 
Assigned for specific Plll'J'OSC 85 704 

Total fund balances 4,160 3,248 628 4,701,638 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES s 4160 s 3 248 s 628 $ s 6,451,107 

(Concluded) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Repon. 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, IlLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Year Ended November JO, lOll 

County Federal 
County County Aid to Aid Engineering Veterans' 

Highway Motor Fuel Bridges Matching Revolving Tuberculosis Assistance 
Fund Fund Fund l'und Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 262,092 $ $ 143,657 $ 179,268 $ $ 32,197 $ 60,946 
State of Illinois: 

Motor fuel tax allotments 363,279 
State grants and expenditure reimbursements 247,433 

Fees for services and materials 81,626 113,233 
Investment income 2,148 102 1,076 3,437 1,258 IS 98 
Other 136,527 57,347 991 25.)47 50 

Total revenues 482,393 610,814 202,080 183,696 139,838 32,212 61,094 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Corrections 
Judiciary and court related 

00 Public health 3,000 
N 

Public welfare 50,895 
Transportation 880,897 154,215 143,333 271,991 116,586 

Capital outlay 19.899 
Total expenditures 880,897 154 215 143.333 271,991 136,485 3000 50,895 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (398,504) 456,599 58,747 {88,295) 3,353 29,212 10,199 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 361,616 4,778 16,584 
Transfers out (10,593) p43,083) {74.666) (95,834) {20,205) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 351,023 {343,083) Q4,666) {91,056) 16,584 {20,205) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (47,481) 113,516 (15,919) (179,351) 19,937 9,007 10,199 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 639,348 141,178 306,958 788,270 237,085 28,839 100,302 

Prior period adjustment 57,316 86,300 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 696,664 141,178 306,958 788,270 323,385 28,839 100,302 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICID, END OF YEAR s 649,183 s 254!694 $ 291,039 $ 608,919 $ 343 322 $ 37,846 s 110 501 

(Continued) 

See accom(l3nying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Year Ended November 30, ~011 

Building Cooperative Animal Mental Law Recorder Court 
Rental Edension Control Heallh Library Automalion Automation 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Property taxes s 349,620 s 162,390 s $ 358,493 $ $ $ 
State of Illinois: 

Motor fUel tax allotments 
State grants and expenditure reimbursements 

Fees for services and materials 152,924 19,570 28,606 39,851 
Investment income 625 65 12 22 54 
Other 1,374 

Total revenues 349,620 162,390 154,923 358,558 19,582 28,628 39,905 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 162,390 21,324 
Public safety 

Corrections 249,620 
Judiciary and court related 19,813 41,922 

00 Public health 113,675 350,792 
uJ Public welfare 100,000 

Transportation 
Capital outlay 969 11,599 

Total expenditures 349,620 162,390 114,644 350,792 19,813 32,923 41,922 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 40,279 7766 (231! {4,295) (2,017) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUNO BALANCES 40,279 7,766 (231~ (4,295~ (2,017~ 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 124,762 225,085 23,538 47,723 103,081 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 124,762 225,085 23 538 47,723 103,081 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR s $ $ 165041 $ 232,851 $ 23 307 $ 43 428 $ 101,064 

(Continued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGH COUNTV,ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMA.IOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Veer Ended November 30, 2012 

Vital Senior State's 
Records Drug Citizens' Su(lport Attorney Treasurer's Document 

Automation Enforcement Transportation Processing Victim/Witness Automation Storage 
Fund Fund Fund Fond Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Property taxes s s s 43,459 $ s s s 
State of Illinois: 

Motor fuel tax allotments 
Stale grants and expenditure reimbursemenrs 18,451 

Fees for services and materials 7,046 16,360 2,440 39,690 
Investment income 10 17 296 10 5 18 45 
Other 12,388 4,427 

Total revenues 7,056 12,405 43,755 16,370 18,456 6,885 39,735 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 3,042 1.570 
Public safery 14,186 
Corrections 
Judiciary and court related 8,860 16,000 30,725 

00 Public health 
+>- Public welfare 67,819 

Transportation 
Capital outlay 494 8 917 

Total expenditures 3,536 23.103 67,819 8,860 16,000 1,570 30,725 

Excess (rkficiency) of revenues over expenditures 3,520 (10,698~ {24,064) 7,510 2,456 5,315 9010 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,520 (10,698) (24,064) 7,510 2,456 5,315 9,010 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,148 36,885 107,339 19,007 (1.706) 36,395 81,380 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 20148 36885 107,339 19007 ~1.706l 36,395 81,380 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT). END OF YEAR $ 231668 $ 26187 $ 83,275 s 26 517 s 750 s 41710 s 90J90 
(Continued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGH COUN1Y,ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

Slllte's 
County Economic Court Arrestees' Sherifrs Attorney 
Waste Development System Medical DUI Drug GIS 

Management Revolving Maintenance Cost Equipment En rorc:ement Fee 
Fund Loan Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ 23,842 $ $ s s $ 
State of Illinois: 

Motor fuel tax allotments 
Slate grants and expenditure reimbursements 

Fees for services and materials 78,868 42,188 11,259 4,593 52,338 
Investment income 34 66 2 4 6 426 
Other 1,325 1,239 1,556 

Total revenues 78,902 23,842 42,254 12,586 4,597 1,245 54 320 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 23,842 60,643 
Public safety 3,960 
Corrections 19,203 
Judiciary and cow1 related 91,054 

00 Public health 86,928 Vl 
Public welfare 
Transportation 

Capital outlay 233 
Total expenditures 86,928 23,842 91 054 19,203 233 3,960 60,643 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures !8,026) [48,800) [6,617) 4,364 [2,715) [6,323) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 5,000 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,000 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES [8,026) (48,800) (1,617) 4,364 [2,715) [6,323) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 131.121 159,415 4,368 5,651 9.099 82,560 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES (DE FICin, BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 131,121 159,415 4,368 5,651 9099 82,560 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT). END OF YEAR s 123 095 s s 110 615 s 2 751 s 10.015 s 6 384 s 76 237 

(Continued) 

Sec accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Year Ended November 30,1012 

County Slate's USDA Animal Animal 
Clerk Attorney Child Solid Control Pet Insurance Child 

GIS Fee Advocacy Waste Memorial Population Reserve Advocacy 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Property laXes $ s $ $ s $ s 
State of Illinois: 

Motor fuel tax allotments 
State grants and expenditure reimbursements 

Fees for services and materials 4,758 48,326 5,619 12,850 
Investment income 7 14 28 29 787 
Other 10 5,538 

Total revenues 4,765 48 340 10 11,185 12,879 787 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General govenuncnt 300 
Public safety 
Corrections 
Judiciary and court related 33.200 6,240 

00 Public health 10 13,180 0\ 
Public welfare 
T r.msportation 

Capital outlay 5,053 
Total expenditures 5,053 33,200 10 13,180 300 6,240 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (288) 15,140 (1.995) 12,879 487 (6,240) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out (45,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (45,000) 

NET CHANGE IN ~-UNO BALANCES (288) 15 140 (1,995) 12,879 (44,513) (6,240) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,297 26,538 100 56,478 49,731 1,053,313 33,373 

Prior period adjiiStment 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), UEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 16,297 26,538 100 56,478 49,731 1,053 313 33373 

~-UND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR s 16,009 s 41 678 s 100 s 54,483 s 62610 s 1,008!800 s 27 133 

(Continued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Rcpurt 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Yur Ended November JO, lOll 
Tohd 

Cirruit Clerk State's Attorney Adult Non major 
Coroner's Electronic Recorders Redeploy Special 

Automation Citation Automation Grant Revenue 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ s s s 1,615,964 
Stale of Illinois: 

Motor fuel tax allotments 363,279 
Stale grants and expenditure reimbursements 6,000 271,884 

Fees for services and materials 4,700 3,248 628 770,721 
Investment income I 10,717 
Other 100 248 219 

Total revenues 4,801 3,248 628 6,000 3,280,784 

EXI'ENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 273,111 
Public safety 2,491 20,637 
Corrections 268,823 
Judiciary and court related 6,000 253,814 

00 Public health 561,585 
-.! Public welfare 218,714 

Transportation 1,567,022 
Capital outlay 47,164 

Total expenditures 2 491 6,000 3,216,870 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 2,310 3,248 628 63,914 

OTUER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 1,850 389,828 
Transfers out ~589,381~ 

Total other financing sources {uses) 1,850 ~199,553! 

NET CIIANGE IN FUND BALANCES 4,160 3,248 628 !135,639! 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,693,661 

Prior period adjustment 143,616 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 4 837,277 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR s 4 160 s 3,248 s 628 $ $ 4 701 638 

(Concluded) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



00 
00 

REVF.NUF.S 

l'ropel1y 1"'"' 
Suue of llhnots 

Motor fuel 1a'< a!lot~nts 

Stare granl.; and C'X'peflditute reimbursements 
Fees for J.(JVI('CS and ma~cnaJ~ 
lm"C!'Simenlrncomt 
Othcr 

Total rcvt:nues 

EXPENDITltRt:S 
Cmrcnt 

GemoraJ }:fwcmmcnl 
Public ,..rcty 
Correcuons 
Julbc:taty and ccun related 
Public health 
Pubhc welfare 
Transpol'laliun 

Cap;lal oudo"'y 
Total e,;pendJtur~ 

Exces..~ ( defiamcy) of revcnuts over expenditures 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCF.S (USF.S) 
Tr;msfers 1n 
Trrm:!ifets out 

Total other fin.1ncing source:S (uses) 

NET CIIANGE IN FliNil BALANCE.<; 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIW ACCRUAL 
HAS IS· NET CIII\NGF. RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PAYABI,E, 
ANII OTIIF.R ACCRUEIIITF.MS 

FIJND BAI.ANCF.S IIIF.FICI1), Bt:GINNING OF YEAR 

Prior period lldJUSintenr 

FIJNIIIIA I.AIIIct:SIDEFICIT), Bt:GINNING m· YEAR 
RF.STATED 

t'UND 81\l.ANCf.S (DEFICIT), END Of YEAR 

McDONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF REV~;NUES. EXPENDITURES, 

AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL- CASH BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

S chd Rewnttt' 

County llighway Coun1y Aid to Bridg~ l'tdtrol Aid Mooching 
Final 

Budgtl Actual 

262.)80 262,092 

JOO.OOO 392.582 
1.000 2.148 

JOO 000 296 807 
9B.J80 953.629 

1.179.000 902.635 

I 179 000 902 6]5 

(225.620! so 'l94 

53,589 

B 589 

(215,620} 104.583 

(152,064} 

639,348 

51316 

6%664 

s 649 183 

s 

Final 
Bud got 

143.810 

1.000 
120.000 
264.810 

300.000 

]00000 

(35,190) 

(35,190! 

Actual 

141.657 

1,076 
57 347 

202 080 

215.010 

215 010 

(12,930) 

(12.930) 

!2.989} 

306.958 

306 958 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Repm1. 

Final 

179,438 

6.000 

185.438 

400,000 

400 000 

(214,562) 

(214,562) 

A(fun! 

179.268 

3,4]7 
< 770 

188.475 

374,859 

H4859 

(186,334) 

(186.3&4) 

7,0]] 

788,270 

788270 

608919 

En&iMering Rr\·olving 
Final 

Budge-t Attual 

102,000 
]00 

J 500 
105 800 

169,000 
37000 

206000 

(100,200) 

20.000 

20000 

(80,200) 

39,912 
l,ns 

29.904 
71074 

116.578 
20.050 

Ill• 628 

(65,554) 

9,860 

9 860 

(55.694) 

75.631 

237,085 

86 .lllO 

323 385 

343.322 

(Conunucd} 



00 
\0 

REVENUES 
Properly taxes 
StAle of Illinois: 

Motor fuel lax allotments 
Stale grants 2nd ~dlture reambursements 

Fees for services and materials 
[n~-estment ;nrome 
Other 

TotaJ revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cunent 

General govemmen1 
Public sofe1y 
Conections 
JudiciaJY and court related 
Public health 
Public welfare 
Transportation 

Capiuu outlay 
Total ~pmdt;un:s 

Excess (deficiency) or rC\.-enues over expt-nd1tures 

OlllER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfe:s in 
Transfers 001 

Total other financ:tng sources (uses) 

NET CIIANGE IN FUND BAl-ANCES 

RECONCILIATION TO MOlliFIED ACCRtiAL 
BASIS· NETOIANGE RF.SULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE.I'AVAIII.E, 
AND OTIIER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF \•EAR 

Prior period odjustmcn! 

··uND BALANCES (DEFICm.llECINNJNG OF YEAR 
RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES {OEFICI1), END OF VF.AR 

McDONOlJGII COUNTY,li..LINOIS 
SCII~:DUI..E OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CJI,\NG•:s IN FUND BAI...ANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL· CASII BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

s tial Rtvenut 

Tubrrcufosis Fund Vetern11s' Assistnn(t- Building Rental Fund 
t'inal Final Final 
Budg~t Actual Budger Actual Budget Attunl 

32,230 32,197 61,000 60,946 350,000 349,620 

IS IS 7~ 9~ 

500 so 
32 245 32 212 61 575 61 OQ4 350000 349 620 

250,000 249,620 

27,000 26,698 
61,299 52,605 100,000 100.000 

21000 26,698 61 29Q 52605 350000 349 620 

5,245 s 514 216 8,489 

5,514 216 8,489 

3,493 1,710 

28,839 100,302 

28 839 100.302 

37146 110.501 

Sec accomponyiug lndcpc!ldcnt Audtlor's Rcpmt. 

Coonrrali\'t- E••~nsion 

Fimd 
Budgr• ActuaS 

s 162,555 162,390 

!62555 162.390 

162.555 I61J90 

162 555 162.390 

(Conbnued) 



REVENUES 
Propenytoxes 
Stat.: of Illinois· 

Mmor fuel tax allotments 
SU.te granls: and e:-;penditure reimbursements 

fees for services and matenals 
Investment income 
Other 

T oral revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Currenl 

Genernl go'-1!Tnment 
Publie safety 
Conec.1ions 
Judiciary and court related 
Public hc:3lrh 
Public \\o'Cifme 
Tran3p0nauon 

Capital outlay 
ToW expcndnwes 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over cxpend:tures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES !USES) 
Tr:1n$.fcrs in 
Transfe~ ou1 

T(naJ oilier finnrn:1ng -sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

RECONCII.IATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS· NF.T CHANGE RF.SULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PA \'ABLE. 
AND OTHER ACCRllt:D ITEI\IS 

FUND BAL\NCF.S !DEFICIT}, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Pnor period adjustment 

FliND BALANCF.S (DEFICIT}, BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT}, END OF YF.AR 

McOONOtJGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCIIEI>ULE OF JU:VENUES, EXrENDJ'TUIU:S, 

AND CIIANGES IN FUN I> BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL- CASII BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year Ended Nllvember 30, 2012 

S chd Rncnuc 

AnimaS Control Fund Law Ubrnry Fund 

s 

foinal 
Bud!!f'f ArCual 

127.950 
soo 

1.200 

ll2.247 

1600 
133 847 

(4.197) 

!4,197) 

153.851 
625 

I 374 
155 8~0 

lll,%4 

575 
114 539 

41.311 

41.311 

( 1.032) 

124.762 

124 762 

165041 

Final 
Actu;~J 

358,877 358,493 

6S 

358 817 358 558 

)$8,871 )50,792 

358 871 350 792 

776fo 

6 7,76fo 

225.085 

225 085 

232851 

Sec nccompanying lndepcndcl11 Atldilor's Repon. 

1'1nal 
,\ctun-t 

s 

H.OOO l9,S70 
25 12 

25.025 19582 

20.000 19,813 

20000 19.811 

5.025 plll 

(lll) 

lUJR 

2J 538 

23 307 

Rl'corder Automalion 
Fina;J 

Bud&et Ac:lual 

22,500 28,459 
so 22 

22 SIO 28 481 

25,670 21.324 

15000 11599 
40670 l2.9ll 

(18.120! (4.442) 

!18,120) (4.442} 

147 

47,721 

47.723 

43428 

(Conrintl<d) 



REVENUES 
Pmpeny taxes 
Stsne ofHhnols. 

Motor fud W :~llo:mtms 
Stme grnnts 211d expenditure rthnbursemenls 

F~ for sen-ices and materiaJs 
Investment income 
Olhcr 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURf.S 
Curren1. 

General gowmmen1 
Pub!ic. safety 
Coneclions 
Judic:i.:uy nnd coun related 
Pubhc health 
Public ~lf.nrc 
Trcnspor1ation 

Capllal outlay 
Total expcnd1tures 

Extess (deficimc:y) of revmues over expenditures 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
T ransf crS OU1 

Tota:J other Snancmg_sourc:es (ust!S) 

NET CHANCE IN FUND BALANCES 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NETCIIANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PAY ABLE, 
AND OTIIER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FliND BALANCES IDEFICin. BEGINNING OF \'EAR 

Pnor period adjustment 

FliND RA LANCES !DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF \'EAR 
RESTATED 

FtJND BALANCES (DEFICil), END OF \'EAR 

McDONOUGII COUNTY,Il.LINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL- CASU BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year Ended November 30, 2012 

s hal Rrv~nue 

Coun An:IDinAiio·n fund Vital Rf"cords Auron1Afion Dn•s l:nforcemmt Fund 
.. lnal Final Fin.A1 

Budgrt Adusd Budgoc Attual Bt•dgtt Actunl 

s 

42,900 19,8]6 7,000 7.046 
125 ~4 20 10 2520 17 

1~.000 12 388 
4] 02~ WR90 1020 7056 17S20 12 405 

3,000 2,867 
1,000 14,1!6 

~0.000 41,922 

4000 4()4 to.ooo 8.917 
50000 41922 7 000 }}61 II 000 23 IOJ 

(6.975) !2032! 20 J.&•s 6 520 !10.698! 

(6,975! (2.032) 20 3,695 6.520 (10,698) 

15 (175) 

101.081 20,148 36.885 

101081 20148 36 885 

101.064 23 66R s 26187 

Sec accompanying Independent Auditor's Rcpoot. 

Smi:or Ciriuns' 
Tran!(!Or1aiian Fund 

final 
Budget Actual 

43,478 43,459 

600 2% 

44 078 41 755 

68,000 67.819 

68000 67.819 

123 922! !24 064! 

(23.•22! (24,064) 

I07.ll9 

107 339 

83 275 

(Contmued) 



REVENUES 
Property taxes 
State of Illinois· 

Motor fuel trut nUormtnts 
State grants and expenditure reimbutsemcms 

Fees for services and materials 
Investment intome 
Other 

Tctn! revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General gO\•emmenr 
Public safety 
Corree1ions 
Judiciary ond coun rcla,.d 
Publiehealth 
Public welfore 
Transportation 

Capi!al outlay 
Toaal expenditures: 

F..xcess (dcficienc:y) of revenues ow:r expendi1u1es 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES I 
Trmsftts in 
Transfers out 

T01W other rmancing sources (uses) 

NET CIIANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS-NETOIANGERESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PAY ABU:, 
AND OTIIER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND RALANCES(DEFICIT). BF.CINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR 

McDONOUGH COIJN1'Y, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXI'ENDITIJilES, 

AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL- CASH BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMEN1'AL FUNDS 

Y~ar Ended NovembcrJO, 2012 

s c:inl Revt'nue-
StaCe-'s Attontcy 

Support PracC"ssing Fund Vi~tlin11\Vi1nr!! Fund Tnasurel'"s Automation 
Fin• I Final Final 

Budgot Act1ud Budget Aclua! Budget Actual 

s 

18,000 23,063 
10,000 10,360 3,000 2.440 

10 15 40 18 
4700 4.427 

10000 10370 180H 23 068 7740 6 885 

16,000 1.570 

20,000 8,860 23.000 16.000 

20000 8 860 23.000 1&.000 16,000 I 570 

(10.000) I 510 !4,985! 7068 {8.260! 5315 

(10,000) 1,510 (4,985) 7,068 s (8,260) 5,315 

6,000 (4,612) 

19,007 (1,706) 36,395 

19007 !1,706! 36395 

26 517 750 $ 41,710 

See accompanying lndependenl Auditor's Rcpon. 

Docnm~nt SlornG;~ Fund 
Fin~ll 

Dodgot Actual 

42,800 39,759 
50 45 

42 850 39804 

40,000 31,654 

40000 31 654 

2.850 8 ISO 

2,850 8,150 

860 

81.380 

81 380 

$ 90390 

(Cantinucd) 



REVENUES 
Propcny taxes 
Scatc of ntinoit: 

Motor fuel tax allotments 
State gtantt and expenditure reimbunemcnu 

Feu for serviecs ud materials 
lcvcstmcnl income 
Other 

Tota.! revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cum::nt 

OC'ncnd government 
Pub6esa!i:ty 
Con«tio"' 
ludicWy and court n::Lucd 
Public heallh 
Public: weiW.: 
Transporwion 

Capilal ou1lay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (dcrJCicncy) of revenues o\I'Cr CJI!pt:nditurcs 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers ou< 

To1al other rmomclna sourecs (uses) 

NET CIIANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. PAYABLE, 
AND OTIIER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Prioc period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR 

MtDONOUGfl COUNTV,ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, 

AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL- CASH BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

$ 

Year E11dtd November 30,2011 

S cial Rnec:a~e 
Catl::nly Waste 

MaaacC"mrot Fa~Sd 
Final 

Bud&et Actual 

115,000 
lS 

IU02S 

111,000 

Ill 000 

4025 

4 <125 

90,151 
)4 

50000 
140 791 

84,005 

14 005 

56 786 

S6,786 

(64,512) 

131,121 

Ill 121 

123 095 

Ec-onomic Denlopmcal 
Revolviat: Loaa Fa.ad 

Final 
Budget Actaal 

25,000 23,842 

25 000 23 842 

25,000 23,342 

25 000 23142 

$ 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Rcpon. 

$ 

Coarl Sytte:m 
M1iatcuac-e Faad 

Fia:at 
Boded Actaal 

42,900 
200 

43100 

9S,SOO 

95 500 

!52,400) 

(52,400) 

$ 

41,947 
66 

42 013 

94,065 

94 065 

!S2,0S2) 

(S2,0S2) 

3,2S2 

159,415 

159 4IS 

llO 61 S 

Arrrstnt" ,..bdical Cost 
Fi.nal 

Budeet Attuat 

li,OOO 
IS 

1100 
12 ItS 

25,000 

25 000 

(ll,KIS) 

15,000 

15000 

21tS 

11,355 
2 

1325 
12 682 

20,504 

20 504 

(7,822) 

5,000 

s 000 

(2,822) 

1,205 

4,368 

4368 

2 751 
(Continued) 



REVENUES 
Propcrtyta."<Ct 
St:atc of Illinois: 

Molor fuel lAX llllolmenu 
St.ate aranu mu! expenditure ~imbunenu:nu 

Fees for sczvice$ and materials 
lnvc:stmr:nt income 
Olhcr 

TotaJ n:vcnucs 

EXPENDITURE.~ 

Cunent: 
General s,ovt:mmcnt 
Public 101.fcty 
CorttetK>n:a 
ludici.uy and eoun "'l>t«< 
Public heal!h 
Public welfare 

\0 
Traruporua:ticn 

~ 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Ex.:cS1 (dcficicnc:)'. orRvcnw:t over expenditures 

OTHER fiNANCING SOURCES (USES! 
Tnmtfcnin 
T ransfcrs out 

Tolal o!her lirumcing "'""'"' (u,..) 

NET CIIANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS· NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, fAY ABLE. 
AND OTIIER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES (DEFt CIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES (DEFlCITJ, BEGINNING 01" YEAR 
RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR 

McDONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL· CASII BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year Ended November 30, 2011 

s cial Rcven\le 
Stalett Altorney 

Sheritrs DVI ~ui2_meat Drug Eafottemtn• Fuod GIS F .. Fuad 
Final Fi.nal Fiaal 

Bads,ct Achud 8udl!:t Actut Budget Actual 

s 

3,000 4,593 4&,100 '1.107 
4 15 6 200 426 

s 000 I 239 I 200 IH6 
l O!Kl 4 S97 S 02S I 14l so 200 S4 089 

73,570 54,397 
5,000 3.960 

l 000 2)) 
3 000 233 sooo l960 73 S70 54 397 

4 364 25 (2,71S) !23,3701 j303! 

s 4,364 H (2.715} !23,370) (303) 

(6.015} 

5,651 9,099 82,560 

s 6SI 9099 32560 

IOOIS 6 384 76 237 

(Conlinucd) 

Sec accompanying lndepcndcnl Auditor's Report. 

Coull Clerk GIS Fe• 
Final 

Budget Acloal 

4,000 4,737 
20 7 

4020 4 744 

10000 S OSJ 
10000 S OSl 

!l,980! j309! 

s !S,9SO! (309) 

21 

16,297 

16 291 

16009 



REVENUF.S 
Property taxe• 
Stat~ oflUinois: 

Motor fUel tax allotments 
State Jmnls and expenditure reimbursements 

Fees for scrvi<os and materials 
bwestmcnt i~orne 
01her 

Totalre~ues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cu11"011t: 

General government 
Publicsofety 
Comctiont 
Judiciary and court ..Wed 
Public health 
Public wclfim: 
TranJp<:!Uli<m 

Capitdoullay 
Total c:"pcnditure-s 

Exa:ss (deficiency) of rcvcnuc:s ovc.- expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESl 
Transfers in 
Transfcnout 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

RECONCILIATION TO MOOIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS- NET CHANGE RESULTING FROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PAYABLE, 
AND OrnER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICtn. BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Pnor period adjustment 

FUND BALANCES(DEFtCrn. BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR 

McOONOUGII COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL- CASH BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Vear Ended November 30, 2012 

s da1 Renaae 
Slate's Attoroey 

CbUd AdvocUI F~ad Aaimal Coatrcl M~moriai Aaim1.t Ptl Poi!!;latioa lcsurauc:e ReStt"Yt Faod 
Final Fiaat F'io•l Finat 

Budget Aelual Budzte Actaal Badge« Actual Badge I Aclual 

s s 

27,000 48,462 1,000 5,619 12,500 12,850 
II 14 R5 21 65 29 1,000 181 

llll 
27011 48 476 I Oil II l&l 12SM 12179 I 000 717 

300 

33,200 33,200 
13,700 13,451 10,000 

ll 200 Jl~OO 13 700 13451 10000 JOO 

{6,189) IS 276 (5,615) (2,266) 2S6S 12 819 I 000 487 

!45,0001 !45,000! 

!4S,OOO! !45,000! 

(6,1891 15,276 !S,61S) (2.266} 2 S6l 12,179 (44.000) (44,Sill 

(136) 271 

26,538 S6,471 49,731 I,OSl,lll 

26 538 56 471 49131 I 053lll 

41678 54 483 $ 62610 1,008,800 

(Continued) (Continued) 

Sec accomp!Ulying lndepcndcnl Auditor's Report. 



REVENUES 
Propenytaxes 
Stale or IllinOIS 

Motor fuel lax ll:llotmcnts 
State gnuns Md expenditure lt'~mburse-mm1S 

Fees for senk.es and matenals 
lnvcs1mml income 

Other 
Total revenues 

EXI'f:NDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safely 
C"onectioos 
Judiciary and rour1 rela1cd 
Public health 
Pubhc: we-lfare 
T:rnnspor1a1lon 

Capnoloud•y 
Tot:1! t>Xprndilurc:s 

EKcess (deflcit'OCy) of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER t"INANCING SOliRCF.S (liSESl 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CIIANGF. IN FUND BALANCES 

RECONCILIATION TO MODIFIED ACCRUAL 
BASIS· NETOIANGF. RESULTING fROM 
RECORDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PAYABLE, 
AND OTIIER ACCRUED ITEMS 

FUND DALANCf.S (DEFICITI. BEGINNING OF YEAR 

Prior period :adjustment 

FUND DAI.ANCI:S (Df:FICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 
RESTATED 

FUND BALANCE!! (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR 

McDONOliGII COUNTY,ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF R•:VENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES. BUDGET AND ACTUAL· CASH BASIS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year Endw November 30,2012 

Cnpital Proiec:ts 

s 

Child Advoeag Ftmd 
Fin•l 
Bndg~t Ar:hud 

s 

6,350 6.240 

6 JSO 6240 

(6,350) {6,240! 

{6,350! (6.240) 

33,373 

l3 l7l 

27 IJ3 

s 

Coroner's Automndon Fund 
Final 

4,500 
10 

4 SIO 

4,000 

4000 

SIO 

SIO 

Arlua! 

6,550 
I 

IIJO 
6.651 

2.491 

2491 

4 160 

4,160 

4,160 

Sec accompanyinglndcpcndcnl Auditor's Rcpmt. 

Jo:qui(tmenl 
RepiMCe:rnt:"nl Fund 

fimd 
Bud eel 

100 
145 000 
14~.100 

225.000 
125 000 

{7'1,900! 

(79,900! 

At:tual 

690 
148.036 
148 726 

225.000 
225 000 

{76.2741 

(76,274) 

216,548 

32,195 

248 743 

172.469 

Capilal lntprowmcon1 
& Egui11mrnt fpnd 

l'inKI 
Budrl A(lunt 

II 

II 4 

2 51>0 
2 500 

j21489! 4 

!2 489) 

10.536 

10.536 

10540 
(Concluded) 



ASSETS 
Current assets: 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
November 30, 2012 

Liability Self 
Insurance Insurance 

Fund Fund 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 541,432 $ 979,068 
Receivables, net: 

Property taxes 316,135 
Prepaid insurance 81,727 
Due from other funds 635,618 11,241 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

1,574,912 990,309 

1,158 93,044 
316,135 

12,56 I 

329,854 93,044 

$ 1,245,058 $ 897,265 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
97 

Total 
Internal 
Service 
Funds 

$ 1,520,500 

316,135 
81,727 

646,859 

2,565,221 

94,202 
316,135 

12,561 

422,898 

$ 2,142,323 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Year Ended November 30,2012 

Liability Self 
Insurance Insurance 

Fund Fund 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 252,844 $ 2,505,114 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Unemployment 84,835 
Liability insurance 182,912 
Workman's compensation 272,403 
Medical claims and administration fees 80,484 2,271,678 

Total operating expenses 620,634 2,271,678 

Operating income (loss) (367,790) 233,436 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) 
Property taxes 306,576 
Investment income 1,314 704 
Grants 23,300 
Interest expense (944) 
Other 34,359 215,746 

Total nonoperating revenue 364,605 216,450 

Income (loss) before transfers (3, 185) 449,886 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (4,840) (704) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (4,840) (704) 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (8,025) 449,182 

TOTAL NET ASSETS- BEGINNING I ,253,083 448,083 

TOTAL NET ASSETS- ENDING $ 1,245,058 $ 897,265 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
98 

Total 
Internal 
Service 
Funds 

$ 2,757,958 

84,835 
182,912 
272,403 

2,352,162 

2,892,312 

(134,354) 

306,576 
2,018 

23,300 
(944) 

250,105 

581,055 

446,701 

(5,544) 

(5,544) 

441,157 

I ,701,166 

$ 2,142,323 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the year ended November 30, 2012 

Liability Self 
Insurance Insurance 

Fund Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Payments to suppliers $ (626,291) $ (2,303,955) 
Internal activity-payments from (to) other funds 252,844 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities p73,447) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPIT AL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Property taxes 306,576 
Other nonoperating revenue (expense) 34,359 
Grants received 23,300 
Interfund borrowing (lending) (31 0,618) 
Transfers in (out) ~4,8402 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities 48,777 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Repayment of loan proceeds (25,862) 
Interest paid on loan proceeds ~944} 

Net cash used in capital financing activities ~26,806} 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on investments 1,314 

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,314 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (350,162) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 
BEGINNING OF YEAR 891,594 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 
END OF YEAR $ 541,432 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating loss $ (367,790) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net 

cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Prepaid insurance (3,652) 
Accounts payable (2,005) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ {373,447} 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
99 

2,505,114 

201,159 

215,746 

(11,241) 

~7042 

203,801 

704 
704 

405,664 

573,404 

$ 979,068 

$ 233,436 

(32,277) 

$ 201,159 

Total 
Internal 
Sen ice 
Funds 

$ (2,930,246) 
2,757,958 

~172,2882 

306,576 
250,105 

23,300 
(321,859) 

(5,544} 

252,578 

(25,862) 
(944) 

(26,806} 

2,018 
2,018 

55,502 

1,464,998 

$ 1,520,500 

$ (134,354) 

(3,652) 
(34,282) 

$ (172,288) 



Mc:DONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

AGENCY FUNDS 
November 30,2012 

County Collector's 
Tax Fund 

Current Mobile Home 
Tax Privilege Court Multi-County Probation Inheritance 

Collection Tax Services Chief Judge Service Tax Condemnation 
Account Ac:c:ount Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,596 $ 1,777 $ 81,845 $ 57,310 $ 266,685 $ II $ 20,351 
Investments 20,000 
Receivables: 

State of Illinois 458,251 
Other 
Due from other funds 

0 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,596 $ 1,777 $ 540,096 $ 57,310 $ 266,685 $ 11 $ 40,351 

0 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ $ $ 89,405 $ 77 $ 1,868 $ $ 
Due to other funds 267 
Due to other taxing units 3,596 1,777 
Due to others 450,691 57,233 264,550 11 40,351 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 3,596 $ 1,777 $ 540,096 $ 57,310 $ 266,685 $ II $ 40,351 
(Continued) 

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 



Unclaimed 
Estates 
Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,658 
Investments 
Receivables: 

State of Illinois 
Other 
Due from other funds 

0 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 20,658 

LIABlLITlES 
Accounts payable $ 
Due to other funds 359 
Due to other taxing units 
Due to others 20,299 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 20,658 

McDONOUGH COUNTY,ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

AGENCY FUNDS 
November 30,2012 

Dive and Sherifrs State's 
Rescue Inmate Attorney 

Advocacy Team Commissary Restitution 
Fund Fund Fund Fund 

$ 158 $ 1,970 $ 23,498 $ 2,839 

$ 158 $ 1,970 $ 23,498 $ 2,839 

$ $ $ $ 

158 1,970 23,498 2,839 

$ 158 $ 1,970 $ 23,498 $ 2,839 

Sec accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 

Township Township 
MFT Bridge 
Fund Fund 

$ 826,200 $ 125,960 
200,000 

89,712 

$ 1,115,912 $ 125,960 

$ 17,164 $ 2,783 
105,481 
993,267 123,177 

$ 1,115,912 $ 125,960 

(Continued) 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables: 

State of Illinois 
Other 
Due from other funds 

0 TOTAL ASSETS 
N 

LIABlLlTIES 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other taxing units 
Due to others 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FlDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

AGENCY FUNDS 
November 30, 2012 

Tri-County 
Waste and 
Resource Tax Sale 

Management Indemnity County 
Fund Fund Clerk 

$ 11,013 $ 62,020 $ 86,322 $ 

11,458 
9,007 

$ 31,478 $ 62,020 $ 86,322 $ 

$ 18,307 $ $ $ 
42,961 

13,171 43,361 
62,020 

$ 31,478 $ 62,020 $ 86,322 $ 

Sec accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 

Circuit 
Clerk Total 

197,419 $ 1,789,632 
50,000 270,000 

547,963 
11,458 
9,007 

247,419 $ 2,628,060 

$ 129,604 
149,068 

247,419 1,425,768 
923,620 

247,419 $ 2,628,060 
(Concluded) 



MCDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended November 30, 2012 

Balances, 
December 1, 20 I I Additions Deductions 

Total All Agency Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,170,527 s 46,700,705 $ 47,081,600 
Investments 270,000 220,000 220,000 
Accounts receivable 554,561 559,421 554,561 
Due from other funds 8,879 9,007 8,879 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,003,967 s 47,489,133 s 47,865,040 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable $ 141,997 $ 129,604 $ 141,997 
Due to other funds 72,918 118,449 42,299 
Due to other taxing units 1,607,560 42,496,459 42,678,251 
Due to others 1,181,492 4,744,621 5,002.493 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 3,003,967 $ 47,489,133 $ 47,865,040 

1. County Collector- Current Tax Collection Account 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,248 $ 38,502,747 $ 38,504,399 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,248 s 38,502,747 $ 38,504,399 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other taxing units $ 5,248 $ 38,502,747 $ 38,504,399 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 5,248 s 38,502,747 $ 37,316,209 

2. County Collector- Mobile Home Privilege Tax Account 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 993 $ 56,544 $ 55,760 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 993 $ 56,544 $ 55,760 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other taxing units $ 993 $ 56,544 $ 55 760 

TOTAL LIAB ILTTIES $ 993 $ 56,544 $ 55,760 
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Balances, 
November 30, 2012 

$ 1,789,632 
270,000 
559,421 

9,007 

$ 2,628,060 

$ 129,604 
149,068 

1,425,768 
923,620 

s 2,628,060 

$ 3,596 

$ 3!596 

$ 3,596 

$ 3,596 

$ 1,777 

$ 1,777 

$ 1,777 

$ 1,777 



MCDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended November 30, 2012 

Balances, 
December 1, 2011 Additions Deductions 

3. Court Services 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 310,137 $ 2,403,476 $ 2,631,768 
Accounts receivable 451,740 458,251 451,740 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 761,877 $ 2,861,727 $ 3,083,508 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 63,025 $ 89,405 $ 63,025 
Due to others 698,852 21772,322 3,020,483 

TOTAL LIAB JLITIES $ 761,877 $ 2,861,727 $ 3,083,508 

4. Multi-County Chief Judge 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,908 $ 22.069 $ 19,667 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 54,908 $ 22,069 $ 19,667 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 1,559 $ 77 $ 1,559 
Due to others 53,349 21,992 18,108 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 54,908 $ 22,069 $ 19,667 

S. Probation Service 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 277,414 $ 41,942 $ 52,671 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 277,414 $ 41,942 $ 52,671 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 1,972 $ 1,868 $ 1,972 
Due to other funds 267 
Due to others 275,175 40,074 50,699 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 277,414 $ 41,942 $ 52,671 
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Balances, 
November 30,2012 

$ 81,845 
458,251 

$ 540,096 

$ 89,405 
450%691 

$ 540,096 

$ 57,310 

$ 57,310 

$ 77 
57,233 

$ 57,310 

$ 266,685 

$ 266,685 

$ 1,868 
267 

264,550 

$ 266,685 



MCDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended November 30, 20 12 

Balances, 
December I, 2011 Additions Deductions 

6. Inheritance Tax 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11 $ 1.462,825 $ 1,462,825 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 11 $ 1,462,825 $ 1,462,825 

LIABILITIES 
Due to others $ 11 $ 1,462,825 $ 1,462,825 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 11 s 1,462,825 $ 1,462,825 

7. Condemnation 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,170 $ 344,656 $ 362,475 
Investments 20,000 20,000 20,000 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 58,170 $ 364,656 $ 382,475 

LIABILITIES 
Due to others $ 58,170 $ 364,656 $ 382,475 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 58,170 $ 364,656 $ 382,475 

8. Unclaimed Estates 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,648 s 10 $ -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 20,648 $ 10 $ -
LIABILITIES 

Due to other funds $ 359 $ - $ -
Due to others 20,289 10 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 20,648 s 10 $ -
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Balances, 
November 30, 2012 

$ 11 

$ 11 

$ 11 

$ 11 

$ 20,351 
20,000 

$ 40,351 

$ 40,351 

$ 40,351 

$ 20,658 

$ 20,658 

$ 359 
20.299 

s 20,658 



MCDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended November 30, 2012 

Balances, 
December I, 20 II Additions Deductions 

9. Advocacy 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 158 $ - $ -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 158 $ - $ -
LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 158 $ - $ -
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 158 $ - $ -

10. Dive and Rescue Team 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,438 $ 361 $ 829 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,438 $ 361 $ 829 

LIABILITIES 
Due to others s 2,438 $ 361 $ 829 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 2,438 s 361 $ 829 

11. Sherifrs Inmate Commissary Account 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,716 $ 58,841 $ 52,059 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 16!716 $ 58,841 $ 52,059 

LIABILITIES 
Due to others $ 16,716 $ 58,841 $ 52,059 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 16,716 $ 58,841 $ 52,059 
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Balances, 
November 30, 2012 

$ 158 

$ 158 

$ 158 

$ 158 

$ 1,970 

$ 1,970 

$ 1,970 

$ 1,970 

$ 23,498 

$ 23,498 

$ 23,498 

$ 23,498 



MCDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended November 30,2012 

Balances, 
December I, 20 II Additions Deductions 

12. State's Attorney Restitution Account 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,631 $ 16,223 $ 15,015 

TOTAL ASSETS s 1,631 $ 16,223 $ 15,015 

LIABILITIES 
Due to others $ 1,631 $ 16,223 $ 15,015 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,631 $ 16,223 $ 15,015 

13. Township MFT 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 880,909 $ 1,366,644 $ 1,421,353 
Investments 200,000 200,000 200,000 
Accounts receivable 93,654 89,712 93,654 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,174,563 $ 1,656,356 $ 1,715,007 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 56,020 $ 17,164 $ 56,020 
Due to other funds 29,993 75,488 
Due to other taxing units 1,088,550 1,563,704 1,658,987 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,174,563 $ 1,656,356 $ 1,715,007 

14. Township Bridge 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 119,197 $ 210,950 $ 204,187 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 119,197 $ 210,950 $ 204,187 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 1,375 $ 2,783 $ 1,375 
Due to other taxing units 117,822 208,167 202,812 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 119,197 $ 210,950 $ 204z187 
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Balances, 
November 30, 20 12 

s 2,839 

$ 2,839 

$ 2,839 

$ 2,839 

$ 826,200 
200,000 

89,712 

$ 1,115,912 

$ 17,164 
I 05,48 I 
993.267 

$ 1,115,912 

$ 125,960 

$ 125.960 

$ 2,783 
123,177 

$ 125,960 



MCDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended November 30, 20 12 

Balances, 
December 1, 20 II Additions Deductions 

15. Tri-County Waste and Resource Management 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,917 $ 112,256 $ 113,160 
Accounts receivable 9,167 11,458 9,167 
Due from other funds 8,879 9,007 8,879 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 29,963 $ 132,721 $ 131.206 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 18,046 $ 18,307 $ 18,046 
Due to other taxing units 11,917 114,414 113,160 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 29,963 $ 132,721 $ 131,206 

16. Tax Sale Indemnity 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,703 $ 7,317 $ 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 54,703 $ 7,317 $ 

LIABILITIES 
Due to others $ 54,703 $ 7,317 $ 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 54,703 $ 7,317 $ 

17. County Clerk 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 94,564 $ 1,129,148 $ 1,137,390 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 94,564 $ 1,129,148 $ 1,137!390 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other funds $ 42,299 $ 42,961 $ 42,299 
Due to other taxing units 52,265 1,086,187 1,095,091 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 94,564 $ 1,129,148 $ 1,137,390 

18. Circuit Clerk 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 280,765 $ 964,696 $ 1,048,042 
Investments 50,000 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 330,765 $ 964,696 $ 1,048.042 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other taxing units $ 330,765 $ 964,696 $ 1,048,042 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 330,765 $ 964,696 $ 1,048,042 
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Balances, 
November 30, 2012 

$ 11.013 
11,458 
9,007 

$ 31,478 

$ 18,307 
13,171 

$ 31.478 

$ 62,020 

$ 62,020 

$ 62,020 

$ 62,020 

$ 862322 

$ 86,322 

$ 42,961 
43,361 

$ 86,322 

$ 197,419 
50,000 

$ 247,419 

$ 247,419 

$ 247,419 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



McDONOUGH COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
SCHEDULE OF TAX INFORMATION 

Year Ended November 30, 2012 

Year Ended November 30,2012 

201l 
Le~ Rate 

General Corporate • * $ 975,000 0.25018 
County Highway 262,380 0.06911 
County Aid to Bridges 143,810 0.03788 
Federal Aid Matching 179,438 0.04727 
Tuberculosis 32,230 0.00849 
Veterans' Assistance 61,000 0.01607 
Municipal Retirement 970,230 0.25555 
Social Security 672,332 0.17709 
Building Rental (Building Commission) ** 350,000 0.09219 
Cooperative Extension 162,555 0.04282 
Mental Health 358,877 0.09453 
County Health 301,785 0.07949 
Senior Citizens' Transportation 43,478 0.01146 
Economic Development Revolving Loan 
Liability Insurance 306,900 0.08084 
The Elms 358,877 0.09453 

TOTALS $ 5,178,892 1.35750 

ASSESSED VALUATION $ 379,6732907 

Note: The amounts reported as collections reflect only the distribution from the current year's tax 
settlement. 

** For the year ended November 30,2012, the assessed valuations used for General Corporate 
and Building Rental were $392,738,190, which includes the assessed valuation of 
Enterprise Zone properties. Collections of $23,842 of taxes extended for the General 
Corporate levies of McDonough County, City of Macomb, and Macomb City Township 
were distributed to the Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund (Enterprise Zone). 
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Collection 

$ 949,710 
261,658 
143,419 
178,971 
32,143 
60,845 

967,538 
670,483 
349,041 
162,121 
357,900 
300,958 
43,387 
23,842 

306,068 
358,493 

$ 5,166,577 



Year Ended November 30,2011 Year Ended November 30, 2010 

2010 2009 
Le'l Rate Collection Levv Rate Collection 

$ 960,000 0.25090 $ 929,245 $ 900,000 0.24377 $ 872,673 
256,480 0.06933 255,268 244,258 0.06800 243,437 
140,577 0.03799 139,914 133,882 0.03727 133,428 
175,404 0.04741 174,595 167,040 0.04650 166,485 
31,505 0.00852 31,371 30,000 0.00835 29,901 
67,638 0.01829 67,343 64,386 0.01792 64,197 

845,000 0.22842 841.016 692,000 0.19264 689,676 
754,958 0.20408 751,408 719,000 0.20016 716,563 
350,000 0.04946 348,345 
158,900 0.04295 158,177 154,322 0.04296 153,801 
350,808 0.09483 349,157 334,080 0.09300 333,057 
295,000 0.07974 293,635 334,080 0.09300 333,636 

42,500 0.01149 42,307 42,924 0.01195 42,798 
23,148 20,487 

300,000 0.08109 298,604 300,000 0.08351 298,990 
350,808 0.09483 349.157 334.080 0.09300 333,981 

$ 5,079,578 1.31933 $ 5,052.690 $ 4,450,052 1.23203 $ 4.433,110 

$ 355.504.206 $ 359,217,205 
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